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PHONE: (401) 294-3331

FAX: (401) 885-7373

INCORPORATED 1674

November 22, 2004

To the Honorable Members of the
Town Council
Town of North Kingstown, Rhode Island

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby

issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of North Kingstown for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of
North Kingstown. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the Town of North Kingstown has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town of North Kingstown'’s
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh
their benefits, the Town of North Kingstown’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of North Kingstown's financial statements have been audited by Prescott Chatellier
Fontaine & Wilkinson, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town of North Kingstown
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based
upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town of
North Kingstown’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, are fairly presented in

conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.



GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction

with it. The Town of North Kingstown's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

This report includes all the funds and account groups of the Town and the funds of the North
Kingstown School Department.

The Town of North Kingstown provides a full range of services. These services include public
safety, streets, recreation and parks, education, health and welfare, and general administration. In
addition, the town operates the Water and Quonset/Davisville Recreation enterprise funds.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK

Over the past two decades, North Kingstown’s economy has emerged as a dominant
employment center for the region. Employment has grown in industrial, commercial and office uses.

Industrial Development

About a third of North Kingstown employment is associated with manufacturing and industry. The
majority of new manufacturing employment in the Town has been the result of migration of firms into
North Kingstown. Seven major employers account for most of the manufacturing employment: Electric
Boat Corporation; Toray Plastics of America; Ocean State Jobbers; SENESCO shipbuilding; Arch
Chemicals; NORAD; and lllumination Concepts and Engineering, Inc.

Other significant employers include: 143™ Air Wing, Rhode Island Air National Guard; Wal-Mart;
Scalabrini Villa; Seafreeze Limited; New England Stone; Maro Display; Dominion Diagnostics; Custom
Design, Inc.; John J. Orr & Sons, Inc.; South County Nursing Center; and Home Depot.

Quonset Point/Davisville Port and Commerce Park

The heart of industrial development in North Kingstown is the Quonset Point/Davisville Industrial
Park, which is operated by the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation (RIEDC). The
industrial and commerce park complex contains 3000 acres of land; approximately 675 acres remain
available for development. The park is actually composed of a number of smaller parks that are
distinguished by their services and types of industry. The overall industrial park area is served by an
airport, rail, and deep-water piers and is thus suitable for a wide diversity of manufacturing and port
activities. One hundred thirty-eight tenants employing more than 6900 employees currently occupy the

industrial park. The complex also includes an 18-hole golf course and marina owned and operated by
the Town of North Kingstown.

The industrial complex was once the home of the Davisville Naval Construction Battalion Center
and the Quonset Naval Air Station. The Naval Air Station closed in 1972 and the Naval Construction
Battalion Center, 900 acres in size, was closed in 1994. The Town and the RIEDC prepared a base
reuse plan for the 1994 closure site with the expectation that the majority of the site would be converted
to industrial and associated purposes. Most of the 900 acres has now been conveyed to the RIEDC or
is a part of an interim master lease for the site. As a part of the Base Closure process, two hundred four
acres of land have been conveyed to the Town by the U.S. Department of Interior for recreation and

conservation purposes; this land adjoins an additional 75 acres and was included in the development of
a master plan for the entire area.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Quonset Point/Davisville Port and Commerce Park (Continued)

The Town has been participating in the development of plans for Quonset Point/Davisville in
anticipation of the full transfer of the Navy property to the State Economic Development Corporation and
the Town. The vision for the industrial complex focuses on the development of a commerce park and
port area of nearly 2,200 acres. A bond referendum passed by Rhode Island voters secured $72.0
million to enhance the existing freight rail system and make infrastructure improvements to Quonset
Point/Davisville. Rhode Island voters have approved an additional $48.0 million bond for further
infrastructure and aesthetic improvements to the industrial complex. Construction has begun on the
relocation and improvement of Route 403, which will, upon completion, provide a limited access highway
link between development at Quonset Point and Davisville and Route 4. The importance of linking the
development of Quonset Point/Davisville to community objectives is demonstrated in the recent
development of a separate element of the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan devoted to the
industrial complex. The Economic Development Corporation amended its Master Plan for the industrial
complex to assure consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. The Town is in the process of
incorporating the amended Master Plan into the Town Comprehensive Plan.

Several major facilities have been proposed, have recently expanded or are under construction at
Quonset Point/Davisville. Keifer Park, the technology center of Quonset Point Davisville, exemplifies the
mixed industrial development that has characterized the growth of the Quonset Point Davisville Industrial
Park. In this portion of Quonset Point/ Davisville alone there is extensive activity and construction.
Dominion Diagnostics completed the construction of a 23,000 square foot office and medical testing
laboratory and is now preparing for the construction of Phase Il development. Goldline Controls
constructed a 67,206 square foot facility. Seiferts MTM, an electronic manufacturing firm has received
approval to construct a manufacturing operation in a new 56,900 square foot facility. Emissive Energy,
an emerging leader in the use of LED technology is constructing a 30,000 square foot addition to their
Keifer Park facility. Vantage Point Properties has completed a 43,000 square foot industrial building and
has another 30,000 square foot building under review by the Town and the RIEDC.

Another area of the Park boasting significant current and anticipated growth is Commerce Park
located at the heart of Quonset Point. Here existing park tenants and new arrivals continue to prosper.
Among the expanded existing facilities are Ocean State Jobbers with a 104,000 square foot addition to
their existing warehouse/ distribution facility raising their total square footage to 978,188 square feet.
Ocean State Jobbers has been approved for a 1.0 million square foot corporate headquarters and
distribution facility that is anticipated to be completed in the near future. General Dynamics/ Electric
Boat, with the recent addition of two new structures, 43,000 square foot materials processing plant and
4,500 square foot paint application facility, continues to grow and remains the largest employer at
Quonset Point/Davisville. SENESCO, a shipbuilder continues to grow and can be ranked as one of
Quonset Point/Davisville’s best success stories to date with a third contract for large barges coming in at
a sufficient rate as to drive both additional employment and the expansion of their facility. D.S. Nelson, a
manufacturer of custom interior woodwork constructed a four-unit 22,000 square foot structure to house
its expansion and act as an incubator for additional industrial growth. Also of note in Commerce Park is

the Community College of Rhode Island Training Center, which provides trained employees for
businesses in the industrial park and the region.

North Davisville and West Davisville are the final areas of the park slated for industrial
development. Here, as elsewhere in the park, existing uses continue to expand and new tenants are
ready to move in. NORAD, an automobile importer, continues to expand its activities at the Davisville
piers. Meanwhile, as the RIEDC finalizes its development plan for this area of the park, Landmark
Building, Delfino Construction and Quonset Trucking (an existing park tenant) have completed new
facilities in North Davisville. Also in North Davisville, the new Town Public Works garage has been

completed and is now open. North Davisville appears to be a high priority for the RIEDC and further
redevelopment is anticipated in this area.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Quonset Point/Davisville Port and Commerce Park (Continued)

In West Davisville, three existing businesses have completed expansion plans: All-American
Meats and Seafoods has added 25,400 square feet to their existing 28,000 square foot facility; Trussco,
a truss assembly company will be adding a 5,238 square foot addition; and BB and S has constructed a
small addition to their current facility to incorporate new operational processes. Maro Display acquired
two 200,000 square foot former Navy buildings and has renovated them for reuse for warehousing and
assembly purposes and also to provide space for a number of smaller industrial operations; a number of
new tenants are settled into the renovated buildings. Seafresh USA, a seafood packaging and
distribution operation, completed construction of a 20,000 square foot facility. Further development
within West Davisville is anticipated with the completion of the relocation of Route 403 as a limited
access highway with access ramps at West Davisville.

Other Industrial Development

Industrial activity is located in other parts of the community, particularly in the mill village of
Lafayette and adjacent to the rail lines that cross through North Kingstown. These areas include Dry
Bridge Road and Old Baptist Road. Atlantic Tree Service has located its operation on Dry Bridge Road
and established a Tree Farm. Two applications pending propose small unit flexible space units to

provide further growth capacity for the Town’s industrial base and start-up space for local small
businesses.

The Town also participates in several regional economic development initiatives. The Town
along with other Rhode Island communities is a member of a regional economic development
corporation focused on enhancing manufacturing activities in the region. The Corporation has a targeted
manufacturer outreach program designed to assess business needs for management and workforce
support and training and to assist the business community with meeting those needs. The corporation
provides small grants for equipment and training. The success of the regional corporation is reflected in

the recent addition of new member communities and the positive feedback from the local business
community.

More recently as a component of the economic development strategy of the Washington County
Regional Planning Council, of which North Kingstown is a member, the Town completed an Economic
Development Plan for the Town. The recommendations of the plan report include designating some
areas for office uses and developing zoning ordinances to implement the strategies. The Plan also

addressed protecting the community character through zoning regulations that address pedestrian scale
and design.

Commercial Development

Post Road (U.S. 1) and Route 2/102 are the primary areas where the larger-scale commercial
and shopping plaza uses have located. Many of the commercial establishments now located on Post
Road were developed in response to the Navy base at Quonset Point and associated growth during the
1960’s. Post Road development suffered following the closure of the Navy base during the 1970’s and
early 1980’s. Since then, growth has begun anew with the addition of Wickford Commons and Hunt
River Commons and the redevelopment of sites originally constructed in the 1950’s and 1960’s.

Redevelopment is expected to continue. With a diminishing amount of commercially zoned land,
it is anticipated that development will continue to focus on redevelopment of sites along Post Road. The
gateway to the Quonset Davisville Industrial Park is located along Post Road and the Economic
Development Corporation expects to issue a Request for Proposals for a large parcel adjacent to Post
Road. The RFP is intended to elicit interest from a master developer for the development of the gateway
area. Anticipated uses might include a hotel; retail that supports the industrial complex; and office uses.

iv



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Commercial Development (Continued)

Prime examples of redevelopment or expansion along Post Road are the U.S. Post Office’s
rehabilitation of a former supermarket; the construction of a Washington Trust Bank; Brooks Drugs
demolishing a former car dealer facility to make way for a modern drug and convenience store; Bess
Eaton Donuts rehabilitating a former bank; and Kingstown Plaza, first constructed in 1961, investing
$500,000 in a clock tower, new signage and fagade improvements. Cingular Wireless has completed the
development of a 5,000 square foot retail location on a long vacant lot; a new 7-11/ Citgo convenience
store and gas station on a previously undeveloped lot has been constructed; and a former health and
fitness facility acquired by the YMCA has received extensive renovations. The YMCA has also
undertaken additional site improvements that will enhance the site through additional parking and
enhanced landscaping. Three auto rental agencies have already located on Post Road; and Tire Pro, an
automotive services facility, has just opened a 7560 square foot establishment. Getty Petroleum
demolished a former service station and completed construction of a gas station/convenience store;
Koch Eye Associates renovated a former restaurant into medical office space; and a new Dunkin Donuts
has been added to the Kingstown Square plaza. Additionally, Tarbox Motors completed substantial
renovations of their facilities. Further south in the US 1 corridor Dave’s Marketplace has just received

approval for an 11,000 square foot expansion of an existing market that will include fagade, landscaping,
and septic system upgrades.

The importance of Post Road to the economic base of the Town is best reflected by the inclusion
of a separate element within the Town Comprehensive Plan for the Post Road Corridor. This element
addresses issues such as improving traffic conditions, updating design features of the commercial area,
and the introduction of landscaping, pedestrian and bicycle enhancements. As development or
redevelopment is occurring, the Planning Commission and Planning Department work to achieve these
goals. The Town is also working with the Rhode Island Department of Transportation to insure that their
projects work toward Town objectives. The Town is in the process of developing a Corridor Plan for Post
Road. The planning effort includes looking at ways to improve the aesthetics of the Post Road in North
Kingstown as well as exploring the potential for areas along Post Road to become growth centers.

In addition to the commercial development along Post Road, there is considerable activity in each
of the Town's villages. Seven villages are recognized for their historic prominence in the National
Register of Historic Places. Most notable is the seaport of Wickford, a popular tourist attraction with
many well-preserved historic buildings from the eighteenth and nineteenth century. The Town completed
the first phase of plans for Wickford, which included significant improvements to the roads and right of
way amenities without sacrificing the historic character of the village. This improvement process began
with improvements to Library Park, a waterfront park linking the Brown Street commercial heart of the
vilage with the waterfront and continued with the Brown Street reconstruction project; these
improvements were funded by the Town, a grant from the Rhode Island Department of Environmental
Management, and a grant from the Rhode Island Department of Transportation. The next phase will
involve improvements to the infrastructure of Main Street, the heart of the local historic district.

In Wickford village, redevelopment activity is underway in the business district. Brook’s Drugs
acquired a former pharmacy and completed extensive renovations designed to make the building design
more in keeping with the historic quality of the area. Centreville Bank constructed a new branch facility
on a former location of a U.S. Post Office. The building was designed in coordination with the Town'’s
Historic District Commission to ensure the new building’s compatibility with the village. Another project
just underway is the redevelopment of a property at the gateway to the village center, the design for the
redeveloped building takes into account the protection of historic structure as well as the village

character. Renovations are now complete on a former diner and office building both recently acquired by
the same local businessman.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Commercial Development (Continued)

Wickford village is such an integral component of the Town’s economic vitality and cultural center
that the Town prepared a Wickford Village Plan (1998). A committee has been established by the Town
Council to assist in the implementation of the Plan. The Town has been awarded $575,000 in
transportation enhancement monies for sidewalk and streetscape improvements and $125,000 to design
a bicycle connection between the village of Wickford and the Quonset Davisville Port and Commerce
Park. Zoning designed to protect the character of Wickford village has been adopted.

Post Road has a long history as a commercial center. Richard Smith’s Castle located near
Wickford village is a recognized historic dwelling in Rhode Island. Richard Smith was the first English
settler in Narragansett County and opened his trading post at Cocumscussoc in 1637. With local, state,
and federal assistance, the property was refurbished over a three-year period and received historic
preservation awards from the State of Rhode Island and the National Trust for Historic Preservation.
Smith’s Castle, along with the Gilbert Stuart Birthplace; Casey Farm, the Quonset Air Museum together
with passive recreation sites such as the John H. Chafee Preserve at Rome Point form vital components
of North Kingstown’s stock of tourism attractions. Helping to better serve visitors to the Town is the

recently expanded Hamilton Village Inn and new restaurants such as Bay Leaves and Seven Moons
both of which redeveloped existing sites.

The Town expects that the commercial sector will continue to grow, particularly in response to
development at Quonset Point/Davisville. Wickford Junction, a commercial project of nearly 300,000
square feet, includes a proposed commuter rail station near the village of Lafayette; Staples added a
25,000 square foot building in the complex and plans for the final phases of the commercial development
are under review. A 120,000 square foot Home Depot is now open on a site in the same vicinity. Shaw’s
Markets has received approval for a shopping complex across from Home Depot. BankRI constructed a
branch facility nearby. Dave's Marketplace opened his second North Kingstown market in a former
supermarket building in Wickford. Additional small retail development is also located along Boston Neck
Road, particularly in the villages of Hamilton and Saunderstown.

Office Development

The Meadows, an office park located at the intersection of Routes 2, 4, and 102, is a 27-acre
office park that opened in 1988; growth in the office market led to the construction of two additional

buildings to the complex. The Wickford Professional Building on Phillips Street is another 40,000 square
foot office complex.

The Lafayette Mill is now a satellite office for the State Department of Children, Youth, and
Families. The state office uses comprise more than 13,000 square feet. Approval has been granted and
construction commenced on a two building office complex at the intersection of Scrabbletown Road and
Ten Rod Road. The site lies across from the Meadows Office Park and between the Wickford Junction
commercial complex and the new Home Depot. Along the Post Road Corridor the redevelopment of two
sites for office uses, including a long underutilized 30,000 square foot building has occurred. This
complex represents the type of sustainable development that complements the Town’s character and is
called for in the Comprehensive Plan. Office development called for in the Executive Park area of the

Quonset Point Davisville Industrial Park are expected to have a positive impact on the Town’s stock of
professional office space in the future.

Vi



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
BUSINESS TAX EXEMPTIONS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TAX INCENTIVE

The Town Council adopted an ordinance in April of 1997, which allows a phase-in over a period
of six years of the assessment on property located at the Quonset Point Davisville Port and Commerce
Park. The phase-in applies to any new buildings, new structures, or new additions to existing buildings
used essentially for offices, manufacturing or commercial enterprises. The phase-in is intended to help
any commercial concern that is willing to locate at the Quonset Point Davisville Industrial Park as a new
business to Rhode Island or for any existing business who is expanding their facilities. This incentive

program has played an important role in encouraging new businesses to locate their facilities at the
Quonset Point Davisville Industrial Park.

MUNICIPAL PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Planning

The North Kingstown Planning Commission was established in 1948. A full-time professional
Planning Department assists this and other boards in the growth management of the town. The Town of
North Kingstown adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 1992 that was prepared by a citizens advisory
committee under the review of the Planning Commission; the Comprehensive Plan received approval
from the State Department of Administration in 1995. The State-required Five-Year Update to the North
Kingstown Comprehensive Plan was approved by the State Department of Administration in June 2002.
The Commission provides recommendations to the Town Council for its implementation.

Zoning and Subdivision Regulation

In May 1998, the town completed the zoning that implements the comprehensive community
plan. The ordinance expanded the number of zones in North Kingstown and now includes a five-acre
residential zone intended to direct growth into Town villages. The zoning ordinance also provides for
business, industrial, public and open space zones. Certain types of uses within these districts are
restricted by soils limitations and groundwater protection overlay regulation. Subdivision regulations first
adopted by North Kingstown in 1946 have been amended a number of times, more recently to implement
the comprehensive plan and respond to new State Enabling legislation.

Growth Management

In support of the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan, the North Kingstown Town Council has
focused on implementing the Plan through a set of growth management strategies. The Planning
Department meets with the Town Council annually to discuss the activities of the Department and
discuss those planned for the succeeding fiscal year. As a component of the Town budget process,

Town departments are asked to document how proposed activities meet the vision of the Town and the
Comprehensive Plan.

Over the past few years many of the growth management objectives have been achieved. These
activities included the adoption of zoning ordinance amendments; subdivision and land development
regulation amendments; the acquisition of farmland development rights; the preparation of cost of
community services reports and the adoption of wastewater management and revised groundwater

protection ordinances. The Town Council also adopted a Water Service Area, which helped recognize
the limits of growth in the community.

Vii



MUNICIPAL PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Growth Management (Continued)

One component of the Growth Management Program and the Action Plan is the acquisition of
farmland development rights. The community electorate expressed their support for this activity in a
June 1998 referendum where $4.0 million was approved for continued acquisitions. The proceeds of the
bond authorization, along with federal and state grants and in-kind charitable donations, has allowed for
the permanent open space preservation of nearly 1,200 acres of land. An additional $4.0 million bond
referendum was approved by the voters in November 2000; funds remaining in the 2000 Bond
authorization are targeted for additional development rights acquisitions. In addition, the North
Kingstown Town Council established an Open Space Fund that is supported by the dedication of a
portion of the real estate transfer tax to the fund.

MUNICIPAL SERVICES

Planning Department

The North Kingstown Department of Planning and Development is responsible for providing
technical services to boards and commissions, the Town Manager, and the Town Council. The Planning
Department reviews and prepares staff reports for commercial, industrial, and subdivision development.
The Department serves as staff to advisory committees, as appropriate. For example the Department
staffed the Wickford Village Plan Advisory Committee and prepared the plan report. The Department
works with the Planning Commission in implementing the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan. The

Planning Department assists the Town Manager and Finance Department in the preparation of the
Capital Improvement Plan.

In 1992, the Town adopted a comprehensive plan prepared by the Planning Department,
Planning Commission and a 52 member Citizens Advisory Committee. This plan addressed issues
related to land use, housing, natural resource protection, economic development and the provision of
community services and facilities. A special component of the plan was one element devoted entirely to
economic development and, where appropriate, revitalization of the commercial district along Post Road.
The plan also included a detailed implementation program that serves as a guide to accomplishing the
programs, policies and regulatory recommendations of the plan. The plan was approved by the State of
Rhode Island in 1995. A Five-Year Update of the Comprehensive Plan was prepared and completed in
June 2001; adopted by the Planning Commission in June 2001 and by the Town Council at their July 9,
2001 meeting; and approved by the State Department of Administration in June 2002. The Five-Year
Update includes the results of surveys conducted by the Town of the residents and businesses and a
visioning process that included 50 members of the community. The visioning process led to the inclusion

of an additional special element in the Comprehensive Plan devoted solely to the future development of
Quonset Point/Davisville.

The Planning Department prepares the Town’s annual application for the State Community
Development Block Grant program. The Department is and has been involved in Town environmental,
economic development, and transportation programs. As an example, the Planning Department worked
with the Conservation Commission in the development of a proposed wetland restoration program. In
conjunction with the Groundwater Committee, the Planning Department prepared the Groundwater
Protection Plan for the Town's aquifer areas. This plan was adopted by the Town Council and
incorporated into the town’s Comprehensive Plan by the Planning Commission. The delineation of the
Annaquatucket Aquifer wellhead, one of three aquifers the town uses for its public water supply, was
chosen by the Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management to serve as a demonstration
project for a program funded by the United States Environmental Protection Agency. This study became
a joint effort of Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management, U.S. Environmental Protection

Agency, and the Town. The study provided the basis for a zoning amendment to further protect the
Town’s drinking water supply.
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MUNICIPAL SERVICES (Continued)

Planning Department (Continued)

The Planning Department is responsible for chairing the Town Technical Review Committee and
coordinating the review of all subdivision, commercial, and industrial plans among Committee members.
The Technical Review Committee also reviews proposed state highway projects and reports its
recommendations to the Town Manager, Town Council or other Town boards as appropriate.

Assessor

The Tax Assessor's Office maintains records pertaining to real property (taxable and exempt),
motor vehicles, tangible business property, and exemptions. This information is used to generate the
town’s annual tax roll. The Tax Assessor's Office assists taxpayers with the filing of exemption
applications, tangible business property returns, farm forest and open space applications, and tax appeal
applications. Currently the Tax Assessor's Office is assisting taxpayers with appeal applications based
on the December 31, 2003 revaluation. The office answers inquiries on real property including
ownership information, sales information, assessments, land and building size, and construction details.
All information pertaining to real property is maintained on the town’s computer assisted mass appraisal

system which is available to the public on computers in the assessor’s office and on the Vision Appraisal
website.

Senior Services

The Department of Senior Services serves as a “community focal point” for the following senior
programs and services: nutrition (Seabreeze Dining and Meals on Wheels), transportation programs,
social and recreational activities, health promotion and screenings, social services and case

management, advisory groups, volunteer services, educational programming and information and referral
services.

The unduplicated number of individuals who utilized services in all divisions in 2003-2004 is
1,907. Programming at the senior center is divided into health wellness and general programming. Over
the past year 1,562 individuals participated in programs at the Senior Center.

Transportation services made 9,178 calls, assisting 133 seniors. Medical transport to community
locations increased 19%. Transportation to adult day care and out of town medical appointments is
currently provided by state transportation services. Volunteer organizations such as FISH and Seniors
Helping Others assist with out of town medical needs when volunteers are available.

A total of 23,163 meals were served through the federal meals program. Meals on site at the Sea
Breeze Dining room served 11,567 meals over last year to a total of 325 individuals served. Meals on
Wheels served 126 homebound seniors with 11,596 meals.

Social Services (Outreach) assisted 504 persons. Services offered through this division include
caregiver’s support, volunteer visiting, Meals on Wheels, Medicare counseling, prescription drug benefits,
as well as information and referral and case management services.



MUNICIPAL SERVICES (Continued)

Police Department

The police department is staffed by fifty-one (51) sworn personnel — the Chief of Police and fifty
(50) officers of various ranks. Support staff includes three full time dispatchers, three part time
dispatchers (weekends), three secretaries, two full time records clerks, one part time clerk, two
custodians and one mechanic. Animal Control and Harbormaster staffs include: one Animal Warden, two
Assistant Animal Wardens, a full-time Harbormaster and two part-time Assistant Harbormasters. The
Police Department operates from its headquarters building located at 8166 Post Road, the Animal
Control Division from the Animal Pound located on Hamilton Allenton Road, and the Harbormaster from
police headquarters and the patrol boat berth at the Town Dock located at the end of Main Street. The
Department uses and maintains a fleet of twenty-one vehicles that log in excess of 500,000 patrol miles
each year. Vehicle configuration consists of marked vehicles equipped with moving radar units, as well
as unmarked vehicles including several undercover vehicles used for surveillance. There are two vans
for use by the Animal Wardens, one van dedicated to crime scene analysis and a patrol boat for use by
the Harbormaster. There is also a Ford Expedition four wheel drive SUV which is useful in winter with the
AWD capability but primarily used by the commercial enforcement unit.

The department strives to ensure that police services are delivered in an effective and efficient
manner - providing a quality of life for all residents and visitors that is free from the threat or fear of crime
impacting their lives. The Department’s goal is to accomplish this mission by employing contemporary
methods and techniques, while remaining ever vigilant of the need to operate with the utmost regard for
customer service. The department handles on average 21,000 calls for service a year.

Public Works

The Administrative Division of public works is made up of the Department Director, Facilities
Project Manager and Secretary. This division is responsible for the overall operation of the department
including policy and personnel decisions, purchasing, budgeting, research, supervision, record keeping,
resident inquiries, and general overall department operations. In addition, the Facilities Project Manager
is responsible for the preparation, implementation and completion of major School and Town capital

projects. The Director and Facilities Project Manager offer staff support to the Asset Management
Commission.

The Highway Division is responsible for maintaining and improving the Town's infrastructure
(roads, dams, drainage, bridges), responding to resident's inquiries, street sweeping, snow plowing,
heavy pick-up, tree trimming and brush cutting, catch basin cleaning, sign making, and other
responsibilities which involve heavy and light equipment. This division is comprised of 17 employees.

The Town Engineer heads the Engineering Division. The major responsibilities of this division
are subdivision review, highway and drainage improvement design, resident responses, plat map
updates, ACAD and GIS computer mapping, subdivision inspections, bid specification preparation and
project management, deed and title research, and staff support to the Department Director. Other
Division responsibilities include working with consulting engineers on the design of collector and
secondary roads, updating the Highway Pavement Management Program, preparation of bid
specifications for road resurfacing, aerial photos and bridge inspections. This division manages the
Town’s curbside recycling program. The Town Engineer provides staff support to the Planning
Commission, and oversees, with the help of two Engineering Inspectors, construction of all new
subdivisions and associated public improvements.



MUNICIPAL SERVICES (Continued)

Public Works (Continued)

The Transfer Station Division is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Town’s solid
waste transfer station and the town’s curbside recycling program. Approximately half of the residents of
North Kingstown use this facility. The transfer station will accept household garbage in plastic bags,
metals, brush, demolition material, appliances, empty propane tanks, waste oil, batteries, tires, mixed
paper, recyclable containers, leaf and yard waste. A yearly fee schedule is established by Ordinance.

The Facilities and Grounds Division is responsible for the maintenance and improvements to all
Town buildings, grounds, athletic facilities and parks. The employees of this division are utilized in snow
plowing operations during the winter. This Division is also involved with Town festivals and tournaments.
Additional responsibilities include custodial coverage for the Town Hall, Town Hall Annex, Beechwood
House and the Community Center. This division is comprised of 5 employees assigned to maintaining
facilities and grounds and 3 employees, 1 full-time and 2 part-time, assigned to custodial coverage.

Water Department

The Department of Water Supply provides domestic water service and fire protection to the
majority of residents and businesses in North Kingstown. Currently there are 9,137 active accounts. In
addition, North Kingstown also provides water to the Town of Narragansett and has served as an
emergency source of supply to the Town of Jamestown. Narragansett meters and bills for water under
their own rate structure. North Kingstown Water owns and operates 10 gravel packed wells ranging in
capacity from 180 to 2000 gallons per minute. The wells are located throughout three aquifers, the Hunt,
Annaquatucket and Pettaquamscutt, which underlie the Town. North Kingstown wells produce just over
one billion gallons of water per year. The average demand is just over three million gallons per day, with
a peak summer demand of up to eight million gallons per day. The distribution system consists of 170
miles of water pipe, 994 fire hydrants, four standpipes, and one storage reservoir.

Library

The North Kingstown Free Library is the symbolic center of the community. It is a permanent
physical space that acts as a meeting place for the exchange of information and ideas, as a gateway to
resources and services which are available to assist the citizens in living and enriching their daily lives,
as a repository of the Town’s collective culture and history, and as an embodiment of the democratic
ideals that have shaped society: freedom, equality, and plurality.” These words, taken from the library’s
first long range plan written in 1986, clearly describe the Library’s mission to meet the changing and
enduring cultural, educational, informational, recreational and research needs of users. Governed by a
seven-member Board of Trustees appointed by the Town Council, the library is open 62 hours each
week, Monday through Saturday and on Sunday afternoons during part of the school year. The Library
Director, assisted by three administrative librarians, carries out the policies established by the Board of
Trustees and is responsible for the entire program of library service to the community. A staff of two full-
time librarians, six full-time paraprofessionals, five part-time paraprofessionals, one part-time clerical
employee, two part-time custodians, up to five part-time seasonal Sunday staff members and up to six
high school students work together to provide the high quality public service for which the North
Kingstown Free Library has a statewide reputation. The collections of the North Kingstown Free Library
number over 121,000 items including books, audiobooks, videos, music, computer software, magazines
and newspapers, as well as a vast array of materials pertaining to local history and culture. As a member
of the Cooperating Libraries Automated Network (CLAN), the statewide public library system, North
Kingstown Free Library patrons have access to over four million items in 48 public library systems
throughout Rhode Island. North Kingstown cardholders can also search 17 online databases, they can
request material from other CLAN libraries, check their library record, and renew books at the library or
from their homes via the Internet. Throughout the year, with funds granted from the Friends of the North
Kingstown Free Library and other sources, the library conducts many free public programs and events
for all age groups on a variety of subjects.
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MUNICIPAL SERVICES (Continued)

North Kingstown School Department

The North Kingstown School Department is a state-mandated agency of the town, governed by a
school committee that is elected to four-year terms every two years. The school department serves over
4600 students in ten schools — one high school, two middle schools, and seven elementary schools. 388
professionally certified personnel supported by over 259 non-certified staff provide these services. The
mission of the North Kingstown School Department is, "Since education plays a vital role in the present
and future success of all students, every school must provide for the maximum intellectual, social,
aesthetic, moral, vocational, and physical development of each student towards challenging the student
to achieve excellence”. This mission is supported by twenty belief statements about student capabilities,
conditions that enhance learning and student learning results. The district and each school develop
yearly improvement plans to maximize student achievement in conjunction with these beliefs.

Information Services Department

The Information Services (IS) Department, under the Finance Department, consists of two (2) full
time employees (IT Manager and GIS Manager) and one (1) part time intern. This department provides
services to all departments in the Town Hall, Annex, Senior Center, Public Works, Police and Fire
buildings as well as the School Administration Offices. These services include PC and peripheral
installation, repair and maintenance, networking infrastructure development, database administration and
development, installation and maintenance of Internet Protocol (IP) Telephony systems and assistance
and upgrading of all software applications. The IS Department is responsible for maintaining the Town’s
networking infrastructure which consists of four (4) fiber optic connected sites (Annex Building, central
Public Safety offices, North Kingstown Free Library and the North Kingstown School Administration
offices), six (6) frame relay connections (North Kingstown Municipal Golf Course, two (2) remote Fire
stations, Wilson Park Facility, Water Pump Station and North Kingstown Transfer Station) and two (2)
Point-to-Point (PTP) connections for the DPW facility and the North Kingstown Senior Center. This
department also has the responsibility of maintaining the Town’s web site. The Geographic Information
System (GIS) is also the responsibility of the IS department.

Leisure Activities Department

The Department oversees the administration, personnel, budgeting, policy implementation and
supervision of the Quonset/Davisville Enterprise Fund. The Fund is supported by the operation of the
Municipal Golf Course and the Allen Harbor Marina. Both facilities were acquired from the Navy through
the Department of the Interior Federal Land Disposal Program for the purpose of providing recreational
opportunities for the Town. The Golf Course Originally built as a 9-hole course in the 1940’s and
expanded to 18 holes in the 1960’s is a classic layout and is one of the most popular in the state with
over 40,000 rounds played there each year. The Marina consists of a public boat ramp and 146 slips
and moorings. The department also serves as the liaison for the North Kingstown Arts Council.  The
Town has acquired Calf Pasture Point, an additional 215 acres of property surrounding Allen Harbor from
the Department of Interior that will be developed into a passive recreation area.
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MUNICIPAL SERVICES (Continued)

Fire Department

The Fire Department has 3 manned Fire Stations, which provide Fire Suppression, Fire
Prevention and Emergency Medical Service to 44 sq. miles of the Town and 12sq. miles at the Quonset
Point/Davisville Industrial Park. The Department has 75 full time employees including the Chief, Fire
Marshal, The Department Mechanic, Assistant Mechanic and the Department Secretary. The full time
members staff 4 Engine Companies, 2 ALS Rescue Companies, and cross man 2 Brush Trucks, a
Ladder Truck, Special Hazards Vehicle, a Decontamination Trailer and for the first time in many years a
Fire Boat. Their responsibilities include fire suppression, hazardous material response, confined space
rescue, rope rescue, State wide decontamination response, marine fire suppression and rescue and
Emergency Medical Services including Advanced and Basic Life Support service and transport. The Fire
Marshal's office offers various programs to educate and serve the public. Some of the programs include
residential and commercial plan review, smoke detector and carbon monoxide detector inspection, senior
citizen fire safety, juvenile firesetter program and baby sitter fire safety. The Department Mechanics are
responsible for the maintenance and repair of the Departments 25 vehicles. The Department also
maintains a municipal fire alarm system for the Town and the Industrial Park. ~ The Department
responded to 3,608 requests for emergency services in the past year.

MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR

Planning Department

North Kingstown received $134,000 in Community Development Block Grant funds for use in the
2003-2004 fiscal year. These funds supported a variety of activities including housing rehabilitation; and
continued work on implementing the Davisville neighborhood revitalization plan. The grant award
included $84,000 dedicated to the Town’s revitalization effort in the Davisville neighborhood; these funds
will be used for housing rehabilitation; programs in the neighborhood school; assistance for a Town
recreation program in the Davisville neighborhood; and infrastructure improvements for a mobile home
park. The neighborhood revitalization funds represent year three of a three-year commitment by the
State CDBG program for activities in the Davisville neighborhood. The Planning Department has been
working with a partnership that includes Rhode Island Housing, the Community Development
Consortium, the Town Child Opportunity Zone, and Crossroads first in working with the neighborhood to
develop a Revitalization Plan and now to implement that plan. The targeted assistance from the first
three years begins that process. Very quickly following the completion of the plan, a neighborhood
organization was created that now serves as a link between the neighborhood and the Planning
Department and other town agencies. The neighborhood group, the Concerned Citizens of Davisville
(CCOD), has successfully applied for and has been awarded several grants that will be used to
implement the plans for the neighborhood network. The Town and the neighborhood have also received
a grant from Rhode Island Housing’s Funders Collaborative to assist in the master planning for Yorktown
Park. In addition to the funds set aside for the Davisville neighborhood, the Town received CDBG funds
to support housing rehabilitation town wide; to purchase playground equipment at and improve a

transitional housing childcare center; and to provide for operational support for a soup kitchen that serves
the region.
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MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Planning Department (Continued)

The Planning Department works to strengthen the Town’s relationship with the Rhode Island
Economic Development Corporation (RIEDC). The Planning Department, along with the Town
Manager, meets regularly with the staff of the RIEDC to address issues of mutual concern and to
coordinate activites. The Planning Department attends meetings with prospective businesses and
coordinates the review of development projects with other Town departments through the Town
Technical Review Committee. A separate joint Technical Review Committee composed of staff from the
Town and staff from the RIEDC meets monthly to discuss pending projects. Over the past year, the
Planning Department has worked with the RIEDC staff and their consultants to amend the Quonset
Master Plan to insure its consistency with the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan.

The Planning Department served as staff to the citizens advisory committee that developed the
Wickford Village Plan and is now working to implement the Plan. The Plan set out ideas and a vision for
future infrastructure programs and design guidelines to enhance and protect the historic village
character; the work of the committee was supported by a grant from the National Trust for Historic
Preservation. A number of programs proposed in the village plan have been completed: a walkway
along the harbor; improvements to Library Park; and additional transient dockage were part of a
successful grant application to the Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management. Sidewalk
and streetscape improvements are now complete. The Planning Department prepared successful
applications to the Rhode Island Department of Transportation (RIDOT) Enhancement Program for
funding for the sidewalk and streetscape improvements. Another grant from the RIDOT supported a
conceptual design study for a bicycle connection between the village of Wickford and the Quonset Point
Davisville Industrial Park; that study has been ongoing this year and included meetings with the public
both residents and businesses within the proposed corridor.

During the past year the Planning Department worked with the Planning Commission on the
preparation of a corridor plan for Post Road, which is a primary commercial area in North Kingstown.
Accomplishing such a study is a specific recommendation of the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan

and it is providing an opportunity to examine the potential of using village center development
techniques.

The Planning Department has been working with the Town Water Department and the University
of Rhode Island Cooperative Extension on a program called Healthy Landscapes. The intent of the
program is to educate landowners and promote landscape practices that minimize impacts to the
environment as well as promote water conservation. The Planning Department with the assistance of a
consultant prepared a Scenic Highways nomination for Route 4 and US 1, which the Town Council
approved for submittal to the State Scenic Highways Board.

The Planning Department prepared an impact fee study that resulted in the adoption of impact
fees by the town. Each year the Planning Department works with the Finance Department to update
those fees to reflect current conditions. An application to the U.S. Department of Interior for a 200-acre
site at the former Davisville Naval Base has been approved and the property has been conveyed to the
Town:; the site will be used for recreation, conservation, and public access to the water. The Cost of
Community services prepared by the Planning Department is used to assess the impact of different land
uses on the tax base and is a component of the Town’s Growth Management Program.
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MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Planning Department (Continued)

The Planning Department completed an update of its Hazard Mitigation Plan for the Town in
cooperation with other Town departments, the public, and the North Kingstown Chamber of Commerce;
the update responds to changes in Emergency Management regulations regarding Hazard Mitigation
Plans. The Planning Department also serves as the Town’s Coordinator for the Federal Emergency
Management Agency’s Community Rating Service (CRS). The Town’s CRS rating allows businesses
and residents to take advantage of a five percent saving in the cost of flood insurance. In addition, in
response to requirements for Homeland Security, the Planning Department worked with the Town Police
and Fire Departments to update the Town Emergency Management Plan and prepare a separate
chapter dedicated to responding to Weapons of Mass Destruction.

The Planning Department has been working with the Town Leisure Services Department to
complete the design for the trail system at Calf Pasture Point. Calf Pasture Point is a 189-acre parcel
that the Town acquired from the Department of Interior following the closure of the Davisville Naval
Construction Battalion Center. Also, the Planning Department was able to secure a grant from the
RIDEM to support the development of an inline skating facility at McGinn Park.

Protecting open space and farmland are among the goals and objectives of the North Kingstown
Comprehensive Plan. To implement this vision, the Planning Department has been working with the
Planning Commission, the Town Manager, and the Town Council to achieve the protection of important
land in North Kingstown. A key approach to this task has been leveraging grants, tax incentives, and
other techniques to minimize the cost to the Town. Over the past eight years over 1200 acres of land
have been preserved through joint ventures with property owners and state and federal environmental
agencies. The protection of 550 acres of farmland and 136 acres of forested land through the purchase
of development rights and the acquisition by the Town of 36 acres for a future well site was
accomplished. These farmland purchases were accomplished using grants and Town bond funds;
grants from the Rhode Island Agriculture Preservation Commission and the U.S. Department of
Agriculture to assist in the acquisition. During the past year, the Planning Department worked with the
Planning Commission on the development of Conservation Development regulations, which will enhance
the Town’s ability to protect environmentally sensitive land.

In addition to other supporting Town policies, the Town’s cost of community services studies
documented the advantage to the Town to keeping land open.  Working with the Rhode Island
Department of Environmental Management, the North Kingstown Land Conservancy and Narragansett
Electric, the Town was able to secure the protection of 230 acres of land along Narragansett Bay; the
land protection opens access to the water for the public, provides protection for wildlife, and provides a
viewing opportunity for the public of sea mammals. During the past year, the Town secured the
preservation of an additional 80 acres of forested land.

The Planning Department participates in several regional-planning efforts. Washington Trust
Bank has been a leader in encouraging a regional approach to planning in Washington County. The
Planning Department attends meetings of the planners from the nine communities in southern Rhode
Island. A Sustainability Grant from the US Environmental Protection Agency and funds from the Rhode
Island Department of Environmental Management and the University of Rhode Island supported a
program for the development of alternative land use regulations to manage growth, prevent urban
sprawl, protect sensitive natural resources and promote balanced economic development; the nine
Washington County communities are participating in the program. Additionally, the Planning Department
participated with elected officials from the nine communities in the development of a regional vision for

Washington County and a county greenway system and the preparation of a regional economic
development initiative.
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Planning Department (Continued)

Affordable housing has been an important focus of the work of the Planning Department over the
past year. State legislation mandating the preparation of municipal affordable housing strategies was
adopted by the State General Assembly; each municipality was expected to re-examine its policies,
regulations, and planning documents to insure consistency with the State Planning Program
requirements for Comprehensive Plan Housing elements. During this past year, the Washington County
Regional Planning Council was able to secure a grant that supported the development of a regional

affordable housing strategy and partially supported the development of the affordable housing strategy
for North Kingstown.

Police Department

The Town of North Kingstown recently received a $326, 000 grant for Homeland Security through
the Rhode Island Emergency Management Agency. This is a town wide grant, which will be used by the
Police Department, the Fire Department, Public Works and the Water Department. The Police and Fire
Departments will, during the 05-06 fiscal year, be going out to bid jointly for replacement electronics for
their Centracom Il dispatch systems. These identical systems housed at the Police Department and Fire
Station #1 are almost 20 years old and in dire need of being replaced. This grant will be giving both
departments’ brand new communications equipment installed into the existing cabinetry at no cost to
North Kingstown taxpayers. This represents the most vital communications link for both departments.

The Police Department will also be going out to bid for video surveillance equipment to better
protect town assets. The Town Hall, the new Public Works facility, Allen Harbor, the rear parking lot of
the Police Station and the new Transfer station will all be under constant video surveillance from the

outside with the images being sent back to monitors at the police department. This system will also have
recording capability.

The Police Department will also be going out to bid for two additional Mobile Data Terminals.
During the 05-06 fiscal year all of the aging laptop computers in the marked police units will be replaced.

Public Works

Continuing its commitment to maintaining the town road infrastructure, Public Works has used the
report from Vanasse Hangen Brustlin Inc., who was contracted by the Town to inspect the pavement
condition of all town maintained roads, to assist in developing a schedule for resurfacing town maintained

subdivision roadways. During the 2004 paving season thirty-two streets are scheduled for a complete or
partial overlay, depending on its rating.

The Wickford Village Improvement Project, a cooperative effort between the Town of North
Kingstown and the Rhode Island Department of Transportation is ongoing. Improvements to Brown
Street, which included ADA compliant sidewalks, lighting, landscaping, and the reconstruction of Brown
Street from Boston Neck Road and Phillips Street to Main Street and West Main Street are seeing the
finishing touches. Design Plans for improvements to Main Street and West Main Street are underway.

The department continues its plans for remediation of the Belleville Dam and Spillway, with
construction documents nearing 100% completion, and a bid process to follow. Beta Engineering, Inc.
has been contracted to assist with this process and to oversee construction work. The Public Works
Department continues to work with Lincoln Environmental, Inc. to obtain approval from the Department of
Environmental Management for the closure plans for the former Hamilton Allenton and Oak Hill Landfills.

This site investigation process is per the requirements of Section 5.0 of the RIDEM Closure Policy for
Inactive or Abandoned Solid Waste Landfills.
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MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Public Works (Continued)

The Facilities Division continues to successfully manage and maintain the increased number of
town parks and playground facilities. Many organizations including the Wickford Little League and North
Kingstown Youth Football utilize the fields at Wilson Park and McGinn Park, gaining statewide
recognition for the quality of these facilities.

The Engineering Division continues to work with the 1.S. Department in its implementation of the
GIS system, including the digitizing of ortho-photo planimetrics, and the linking of various Town
department databases. The division also manages the requests for removal/maintenance of street trees
and works with the Tree Warden in following the Street Tree Ordinance. This office acts as a liaison
between residents and the Tree Warden during this process.

The pay-as-you-throw program at the Transfer Station on Devils Foot Road continues to be
successful in reducing the amount of Solid Waste generated in town. Over 30% of the waste generated
in town is recycled, either through the town’s curbside recycling program or at the Transfer Station where
containers are available for the disposal of acceptable recyclables, at no cost. This diversion rate
represents the ratio of recycling tonnage to garbage tonnage disposed of at Rl Resource Recovery’s
landfill and recycling facilities in Johnston. The program saw an increase of 119 tons of materials
recycled during the past fiscal year, and for the first time, box springs and mattresses will be recycled,
rather than buried in the Central Landfill in Johnston. The Transfer Station’s composting operation
continues to produce a high quality product, offered to residents at no cost, which is in demand

throughout the year. The Town anticipates moving the Transfer Station to its new location, just up the
road, as the State’s Rte. 403 construction project continues.

Water Department

Providing high quality and adequate quantity of drinking water is the paramount goal of the North
Kingstown Department of Water Supply. In this regard, an ultra violet disinfection system was installed
at Well #10 allowing us to reactivate the well this year. This well is a two million gallon per day source of
water. A hydrological study to locate an additional one million gallon per day water source has been
completed and a new well constructed. The next phase of this project includes permitting and well
station design and construction. This well will provide redundancy and flexibility in supplying water
during times of high demand. The construction of an updated SCADA system has recently been
completed. The updated SCADA system will control and/or coordinate the operation of North Kingstown
Water's wells and storage facilities to meet existing demands with an emphasis on reducing the overall
energy and operational costs. The system will also store and process data to provide unattended

monitoring of the water system. In addition the installation of a satellite replacement well for NK Well #5
is in progress.

A five-year update to the Clean Water Infrastructure Plan has been completed and approved by
the Rl Department of Health. This plan details the principal components of the water system
infrastructure and provides a mechanism for funding to replace and/or rehabilitate these components at
the end of their useful lives. The Water Department also conducted an in-house water rate study,
establishing a schedule of rates for years 2004 through 2008.
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MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Library

Fiscal Year 2003-2004 was a successful and exciting year for the library. The library served
192,959 patrons who visited the library and countless others who called on the telephone or accessed
online resources through their home computers. The Library’s usage statistics remain at a very high
level, keeping us among the top ten busiest public libraries in Rhode Island. The Library checked out
370,692 items last year. The number of items checked out of the library is just one of the many ways to
calculate the volume of use that the library enjoyed throughout the year. For instance, library staff
responded to more than 61,000 patron questions at our three public service desks; 1,723 new patrons
registered to use the library; recorded 31,384 connections to the Web page and more than 65,000
searches were conducted using the online databases which the library makes available. 572 programs
were held, which were attended by 10,798 adults, teens, and children. The Library received a grant from
The Champlin Foundations to replace the oldest computers, laser printers and receipt printers on the
network, and to purchase a piece of equipment that cleans and repairs compact discs and DVDs. The

Sunday calendar was expanded to include most Sundays in the school year from late September
through mid-June.

North Kingstown School Department

The district continued implementation of a comprehensive seven-year curriculum cycle for the
district.  The district continued development of curriculum office headed by curriculum director who
worked extensively with teachers in a wide range of curriculum areas and initiatives throughout the
school year. The department continued development of a system of school level K-12 curriculum
coordinators to oversee, lead and monitor curriculum development in specific curriculum areas. The
district continued the process of construction of goals, objectives, scope and sequence for the district in
each subject area in grades kindergarten through twelve. Over the past seven years the district have
reviewed and renewed all of our curriculum areas as a result of our curriculum review cycle. This cycle
has provided us with standards based goals and objectives as well as materials in Science, Social
Studies, Guidance, Foreign Languages, English/Language Arts, Reading, Mathematics, Art, Music,
Careers and Physical Education. This school year the district continued into the second phase of the
cycle again with adoption of new materials in Science and World Languages. The Director of Curriculum
and Instruction has established and led a cadre of curriculum coordinators and classroom teachers in
implementing an excellent system of curriculum renewal. Work has begun in the development of grade
level standards in the areas of Mathematics, Language Arts and Reading.

The district developed, implemented and monitored a school level improvement process at each
district school. The district continued to implement the district-wide school improvement process in each
district school creating improvement plans and stating those plans in terms of student results. Schools
utilize student performance assessment data, State Frameworks, National Standards and the 2000 SALT
survey data (Information Works) in identifying areas for improvement. The district adopted and
implemented a district wide assessment program that is congruent with the state assessment program
and provides information at each grade level for curriculum development and improvement of student
achievement. The department conducted extensive staff development with school improvement teams in
techniques for utilizing data to develop action plans in terms of student results and in effective utilization
of information in decision-making. A school level improvement process is functioning at each district
school creating improvement plans and stating those plans in terms of student results. This process
utilizes student performance assessment data, State Frameworks, National Standards and the SALT
survey data (Information Works) in identifying areas for improvement. The school improvement process
enables all schools and the district to respond effectively to state/federal requests for information in
relation to Improving America’s Schools Act, Article 31 and SALT.
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North Kingstown School Department (Continued)

This improvement process has also been applied to educational support areas such as guidance,
nursing and special education services. All schools except for Quidnessett have participated in very
successful SALT visits. North Kingstown High School participated in a very successful accreditation visit
by the Northeast Accreditation Association this past fall. A visit to the high school by a team of

superintendents from the North East Superintendents Leadership Council brought high praise for the
high school guidance and advisory programs.

In the area of educational improvement, the department continues the process of implementing a

long-range strategic plan based on bringing the school departments Mission and Belief Statement closer
to operational reality.

An instructional improvement process which provides the foundation for the development of the
skills of all educational personnel to deliver instruction utilizing a variety of techniques matched to
individual student needs continued with the training of new members of the teaching and administrative
staff. All teachers in the district have participated in training using The Study of Teaching to continuously
improve their skills in instruction and to foster a collegial approach for the improvement of instruction. A
teacher evaluation program that emphasizes continuous growth and development has been
implemented on an optional basis. A peer mentoring program has also been implemented for new
teachers and teachers needing assistance. Partnerships with the University of Rhode Island and Rhode
Island College for professional development and teacher preparation have been implemented throughout
the district. Our professional development coordinator has been very successful in developing and
delivering a broad range of professional development opportunities for professional staff.

Systems to improve parent and community involvement continued in this fiscal year. These
systems provides for the continuation of school advisory councils at each of the schools in the district
and implementation of the Parents as Teachers program for preschool parents. School Advisory
Councils have been established at each district school along with training and follow-up support to each
advisory council. Parent development and volunteer programs have been implemented through the local
Parent Teacher Organizations, LINKS and the COZ. Our Parents as Teachers program begins working
with parents when their children are born. PTO’s and SAC’s have been very active in addressing district-

wide issues in the areas of growth management, technology, grading systems and new high school
construction.

Over the past nine years, the technological capability of the school system has been expanded
and modernized. All classrooms have computers and high speed Internet access in support of
instruction. All teachers have e-mail accounts. Technology has become a common and integral part of
our instructional program. North Kingstown students are becoming increasingly comfortable and
sophisticated in their use of technology in support of their learning. North Kingstown operates one of
three decision centers in the state. A new student information system has been adopted and

implemented. This system is a part of a statewide technology initiative to establish a common integrated
data system for all school functions.

Our high school students are receiving their educational programs in a state of the art building
and utilizing a top-notch athletic facility to participate in interscholastic competitions. Major additions
have been constructed on Hamilton, Quidnessett and Stony Lane Elementary Schools. Parking lots,
curbing, fire alarm systems, lighting improvement, networking systems, roof and numerous other
improvements have been completed in all of our schools over the past ten years. An architectural firm
has been retained to review the programmatic needs of all of our schools. While there is still more to do,
these improvements of our infrastructure have resulted in a district with buildings and facilities that are
among the best in the state. Parents and students take an active role in school beautification programs.
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MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

North Kingstown School Department (Continued)

This past year, the district reopened Fishing Cove School as a K-5 school. Redistricting has
been completed and will take us well into the future. A pilot full day kindergarten program is being
offered at Davisville Elementary School for the third year. The preschool special needs program
continues to operate at Fishing Cove and is being supplemented by a preschool program operated by
the West Bay YMCA to provide the students with special needs a social environment that is more

representative of the community at large. Fishing Cove continues to be used by the LINKS volunteer
program and some district specialists.

Information Services

During Fiscal Year 2004, the IS Department deployed several new servers, about a dozen PCs,
the installation of a new Tax billing system and the development of a plan to migrate to a new Utility
Billing system. The Imaging system was upgraded and converted into a new database format. GIS also
saw a significant advancement as the Town continued to work together on this on-going project. 2004
also brought a new Tax billing system to the Town. The IS department, working with the Finance and
Assessing departments, is implementing a new Tax system. This project took several months to
complete. The Town went live with the first phase of the new system in May 2004.

Deploying the new servers consisted of moving thousands of user files and several databases
(Assessing revaluation, Water ISDS and backflow). This task was completed on time and with almost no
down time to the end users, as most work was done off hours. In the GIS area, a new server was
deployed and 2002 land cuts were integrated into the Town’s new geo-database. Working with a
consultant, the IS Department gained the necessary skill set to maintain yearly changes to the Town’s
plat maps and incorporate them into the GIS geo-database.

An Imaging system was installed on a new server and the database was converted as well. This
on-going project should be completed in Fiscal Year 2005.

Recreation

North Kingstown Recreation made every effort to reach as many of its very diverse population as

possible in the past year. As always, the instructors and leaders were the most important influence to the
success of the department.

The Dance Program under a new format was an immediate success as 75 first through fourth
graders learned new movements in the All Purpose room at Wickford Elementary School. The 2003
“New Star” was the third to fifth grade Drawing Classes and they, as well as the Saturday Art Program for
pre-school through second grade were extremely popular with about 250 participants. Many of the
children experienced the excitement of seeing their drawings put on display at the North Kingstown
Library throughout the year for the host of visitors to view. One of the older programs to enjoy a leap in
success was the Girls Field Hockey League. Attendance moved to 105 players about 25 more than ever

before. Some of these also had the opportunity to play games at other towns, moving the level of
competition up a notch.



MUNICIPAL INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Recreation (Continued)

This was the tenth season to offer a chance to audition for a play directed by the Missoula
Children’s Theatre Performance. This year was far different then before because, for the first time, the
sponsor was the North Kingstown Recreation Department and the performances took place at the
auditorium at North Kingstown High School. The instructors did a wonderful job of leading the 70 boys
and girls of all ages in “The Frog Prince”. It is always exciting and heart-warming to witness the growth of
these actors in a week’s time. The children were confident and professional in (almost) every way and
never missed a cue as they sang and danced their way across the stage.

The most exciting part of the summer occurred at the Yorktown Playground where the children
witnessed the building of a new, brightly colored piece of playground equipment with many ways to have
fun and exercise. This was accomplished as a result of donations and grants. Girls Softball was played
by over 300 six to thirteen year olds and over 800 of that age group enjoyed boys and girls basketball
with about 160 of those participating at the tournament level. Aimost 250 girls stretched, vaulted and cart
wheeled their way through the gymnastics program. A summer Tennis Ladder League was enjoyed by

older teens and adults with another 125 six to thirteen year olds learning the skills in the instructional
program.

The Teen Extreme Program for seventh through ninth grade students was again a huge success
with almost 100% occupancy (42 per session for four sessions). They enjoyed kayaking, white water
rafting, thrills at Six Flags, whale watching, para sailing, rock climbing and many other exhilarating
adventures. The “Busy Bodies” Program is continuing to gain momentum as many 18 month to 5 year
olds are learning coordination and social skills in the Cold Spring Community Center.

Leisure Activities Department

This year the Department will continue to plan and implement improvements to the Golf Course.
A new Greens mower was purchased, the golf cart fleet was upgraded through its three-year
replacement plan, the preventative maintenance system was updated for all golf course equipment and
new vehicles that will be purchased through Rolling Stock replacement program. Initial planning began
for long-term improvements for the Golf Course. At the Allen Harbor Marina, the Department has begun
to implement Phase | Improvements for Allen Harbor Master Plan with completion of the design of the
new sewer and restrooms. An Assent to expand the Marina by 55 slips was received from the Coastal
Resources Management Council as well as permits from Rhode Island Department of Environmental
Management and the Army Corps of Engineers. The implementation of the Calf Pasture Point Master

Plan to convert the park into a passive recreation complex continued with the design of parking facilities
and Phase | trails being the top priority.

The Arts Council has developed another outstanding program including events and concert series
for the enjoyment of Town residents. Highlighting this year's Program, in July and August the Arts
Council presented “Shakespeare at the Beach” that consisted three different productions of Shakespeare
plays by the Trinity Rep Summer Theatre program, Mixed Magic Theatre and the Colonial Theatre
Group. It will again seek financial support from the Rhode Island State Council on the Arts.



FOR THE FUTURE

Planning Department

The Planning Department led the Planning Commission and the Town Council through a
Comprehensive Plan Five-Year Update process that culminated in the adoption of the document by the
Planning Commission in June 2001 and July 2001 by the Town Council. State law mandates this
process and North Kingstown was the first Rhode Island community to complete their Five-Year Update.
The Five-Year Update to the Plan allowed the community an opportunity to assess progress in
accomplishing the goals set out in the 1995 Plan and modify or retarget the Town’s view for the future.
As a part of the implementation program, the Planning Commission and Town Council will be reviewing
the adoption of new regulations that will allow for Conservation Development.

The Planning Department will continue to work with the Wickford Plan Committee and other Town
offices to implement the Wickford Village Plan. With the completion of the sidewalk, street, and
streetscape improvements in the commercial areas of Wickford, the next focus will be in residential areas
within the village; the Planning Department has been assisting the Public Works Department with the
public participation component and the review process. The Planning Department will also be working
with the Rhode Island Heritage and Historic Preservation Commission and the public in a discussion of a

study of potential additional areas of Wickford village that should be incorporated into the National
Register Historic District.

To protect farmland from development, the Department is continuing to assess the costs of
delivering services to different land use categories; information from studies indicates that residential
land uses consume more tax dollars than are generated and that conversely farmland generates more
tax dollars than are used to deliver services to agricultural uses. The Department is continuing its
development rights acquisition efforts for farms using agriculture monies, state open space funds, the
Town open space fund, and the funds authorized by the North Kingstown electorate. The Town through
the Planning Department will continue to partner with organizations such as The Nature Conservancy,
the North Kingstown Land Conservancy and the Narrow River Land Trust, and the Rhode Island
Department of Environmental Management on these efforts. The Town anticipates closing during this
next fiscal year on development rights acquisition for another 120 acres of farm, forest, and open space.

The Planning Department will continue to work with the RIEDC to coordinate review of services
and facilitate business development. The Planning Department will also work with the RIEDC to assure
the full implementation of the Base Re-use Plan adopted for Quonset Point/Davisville. The Planning
Department will assist the Planning Commission and Town Council in their review and potential adoption
of the Quonset Master Plan as an amendment to the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan. The

Planning Department will continue to support the work of the Planning Commission in developing the
Post Road Corridor Plan.

Regional efforts will continue to be a component of the work of the North Kingstown Planning
Department. The Planning Department will be participating with Washington Trust Bank’s regional
planning effort in implementing the vision plan. The Planning Department will also be taking part in a
feasibility study examining the potential structure for a regional housing entity. With the Washington
County Regional Planning Council, the Town will be working on an assessment of potential for Transit
Oriented Development in Washington County; the study will be focused on North Kingstown and
neighboring Exeter as prototypes for such development concepts.
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FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

Planning Department

Over the next year, the Planning Department will focus on completing the implementation
strategies associated with a number of special projects: the Hazard Mitigation Plan; the Davisville
Neighborhood Revitalization Plan and the various phases of the Allen Harbor Master Plan. In the
Wickford harbor area, the Planning Department in conjunction with Save the Bay and the Department of
Public Works will be developing the design for improved storm water management systems. The
Planning Department will also be working on the grant from the Department of Transportation for the

development of a bikeway from Wickford village to the Quonset Point/Davisville and the construction of
sidewalks in the village of Wickford.

Assessor

The Tax Assessor's Office continues to maintain sales information by sending out sales
verification letters and monitoring sales information to accurately reflect market trends.  The December
31, 2003 revaluation was implemented for the 2004 tax roll. The goal of the state mandated triennial
revaluations is to promote uniform assessments for all real property. As part of the revaluation the Tax
Assessor’s Office will assist taxpayers file the Application for Appeal of Property Tax forms. The town’s

CAMA information will continue to be available on the web to allow the public easier access to all real
property information.

Senior Services

The Town has completed the evaluation of the responses to the 5,000 interest surveys sent to
adults over age 55 in 2003. Thirteen percent of the surveys were completed and returned and plans are
underway to implement as many of the top program choices as possible.

The Town continues to monitor the capacity of the current building to support the level of
programming desired by the older adult population in North Kingstown. Participants are sometimes

turned away from special events because of limited space. This issue will be given serious consideration
and discussion in the upcoming year.

The North Kingstown Senior Association (NKSA) continues to subsidize the majority of the
ongoing programs as well as support many new initiatives. Funding from a Community Development

Block Grant, will enable us to increase the outreach in the north end and Davisville neighborhoods of
North Kingstown.

In 2005-2006 the Department of Senior Services will apply for re-accreditation by the National
Council on Aging.

Police Department

The police department looks forward to a new addition between police headquarters and the fire
department headquarters. This new building, scheduled to be started in 2005, will be the home of a new
communications division that will serve as the joint police/fire dispatching center. On the police side
there will be civilian dispatchers on duty at all times. This will allow for more police officers to be on the
road since they will no longer be dispatching. The new building will also have the records division, a new
Emergency Operation Center (EOC) and a women’s locker room. The EOC room will always be
available for the Director of Public Safety and the town department heads to gather to coordinate a
critical incident response. This new addition will also allow for much needed room in the already
crowded existing police department. The Town has obtained a $250,000 appropriation from the U.S
Senate through Senator Jack Reed’s office to purchase equipment for the EOC room.
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FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

Police Department (Continued)

Digital photography is certainly the future of photography in law enforcement. The quality has
been getting better every year and the storage and retrieval capability with digital is far superior to
traditional 35 mm photography. Currently the police department records mug shots at arrest on a digital
camera and then goes through a process of downloading them and linking them to individual arrest
records within the computer network. The department would eventually like to purchase digital recording
equipment that would automatically take the mug shot and store it within the IMC (Police software
system) saving man-hours that are currently used to retrieve and manually store those within the system.

Public Works

The goals of Public Works remain constant and include: Refinement and effective use of a town-
wide pavement management program, the first step toward pavement life cycle management; Town-wide
Internet accessible GIS system, with integration of state and federal mapping; Continued public works
fleet upgrade that will improve the efficiency of the infrastructure maintenance programs; Continued
improvement to solid waste program, including household waste reduction and recycling tonnage
increase; Implementation of the Town’s tree management program; Improvements and Building Life

Cycle management of all Town facilities; Implement an improved permit tracking system, allowing
interdepartmental database sharing .

Water Department

Maintaining distribution system infrastructure is an important Department initiative. The Water
Department maintains four steel water towers and a concrete water storage reservoir. A recent physical
-inspection of these facilities identified specific tank features that are in need of rehabilitation or repair.
The necessary corrective actions/improvements have been incorporated into the Water Department
capital and operating budget to assure that these facilities remain structurally sound. Consideration is
being given to replacing the Juniper Hill standpipe, which has been a source of water quality problems.
This storage tank has been in service since 1939. These recent water quality problems associated with
the low service standpipes have led to discussion of system disinfection. The Water Department will be
piloting disinfection of the low service area using sodium hypochlorite over the next year as well as
exploring other options to ensure the safety of distribution system water quality.

Maintenance of the Town’s 10 municipal wells is also of vital importance. Wells are inspected
and flow tested on a yearly basis. In addition the wells are on a schedule of redevelopment. This
includes capacity testing, TV inspection and a combination of chemical treatment and mechanical
surging and pumping to clean the well and maintain well yield.

Library

The North Kingstown Free Library plans to solidify its role as the “symbolic center of the
community.” The Library’s long-range plan and the annual service plans that grows out of that long range
plan address the established goals—to maintain and to enhance, where possible, the high quality of the
daily service to patrons; to renew continually the commitment to the library collections; to offer a range of
public programs for all age groups and educational levels; to solidify the role of the library as a
“community gateway” to the technology resources that people need to live their lives in the 21% century;
to staff the library with well-trained, capable employees who are committed to public service; to provide a
safe, accessible, functional, and aesthetically pleasing environment for library service; to ensure the
continued fiscal health of the library; to administer library resources and services using sound

management practices, a forward-looking vision, and a clear understanding of the democratic principles
that guide public library service.
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FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

North Kingstown School Department

The North Kingstown School Department will continue with the development of the systems it has
in place. Greater emphasis will be placed on the development of higher expectations and higher
achievement for students with special needs. The implementation of a full day kindergarten program for

all students will be investigated. A program of modernization and upgrading of all facilities will be
developed and implemented.

Information Services

During Fiscal Year 2005, the IS Department will migrate the Town to a new Water billing system
and Imaging system as well as roll out GIS to the desktop of most departments.The new Water billing
system, which will also coincide with the Town’s new radio reading system, should be live for the March
2005 billing. The IS Department, along with the Water and Finance departments, will work together to
verify converted data, system functionality and compare parallel system processing before going live.
This system will be integrated with the existing financial system and provide more timely access as it
pertains to water billing receivables. 2003 land cuts and parcel adjustments will be incorporated into the
GIS geo-database. GIS will also begin to be deployed to departmental desktops. The mapping
database, as well as tools to create abutters’ list and mailing labels and identify various attributes of
property, will be available to most users right from their PCs.

Leisure Activities Department

Completing the construction of a new practice putting green is the top project for this year. The
development of a long-range plan to schedule improvements to the Municipal Golf Course will continue
by focusing on numerous small projects that will be required to enhance the conditions of the Golf
Course. Many of these projects have had initial evaluations and include additional cart paths, rebuilding
of tees and greens as needed, rain shelters and replacement of drainage pipes.

Building floats for the new A-dock and South-dock networks at the Allen Harbor Marina will
continue in conjunction with the Phase | Improvements. The two new dock networks will be constructed

in the Spring of 2005. The Allen Harbor Master Plan will be updated to define the future phases of the
Project.

The design of the Calf Pasture Point passive recreation complex will continue with wetlands

mitigation and Phase 2 trails being the top priorities. Construction for the 1% Phase of improvements is
scheduled for Spring of 2005.

The Arts Council continues to add more programs to their schedule including a second
“Shakespeare at the Beach” Festival that will consist of three different productions by the Trinity Rep
Summer Theatre program, Mixed Magic Theatre and the Colonial Theatre Group. They continue to
explore ways to raise additional funds for Arts programming such as sponsorships.



FOR THE FUTURE (Continued)

Fire Department

The Department is in the process of having all Engine and Ladder Companies Advanced Life
Support licensed by the Rhode Island Department of Health. This will provide a much higher level of care
for the patient until the arrival of the Rescue. The Department is working with its Computer Aided
Dispatch Company to have the rescues equipped with the ability to electronically report State EMS
reports directly to Hospitals for quicker patient information to increase the level of care to the patient.

The Department will be working with the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation
officials in the fire-safe development of the Quonset Point/Davisville Industrial Park. The Department

will continue with the Radio Master Box replacement program and to update the Computer Aided
Dispatch and Records Management program to provide information more quickly and accurately.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Department of Planning Development

The Planning Department prepared three successful grant applications for Transportation
Enhancement program monies to the Rhode Island Department of Transportation. One grant for
$500,000 was awarded to improve the sidewalks in Wickford village. A second grant for $75,000
dovetails with the previous; it has been awarded to provide streetscape improvements such as benches,
lighting, and other amenities in Wickford village. A third grant for $125,000 has been awarded to provide
funds for designing a bicycle connection between Wickford village and the Quonset Davisville Port and
Commerce Park which is approximately three miles away.

The Planning Department with Save the Bay and the North Kingstown Department of Public
Works prepared a successful grant application to the Rhode Island Department of Transportation for
funds to design and construct systems to mitigate storm water pollution flowing to Wickford Harbor. A
grant from the USEPA allowed the Town to develop a wetlands inventory and plan while a grant from the
State Division of Forestry allowed the Town to inventory the street trees on Town roads and develop a

management plan for protecting this resource. Both of these plans are now completed and in use by the
Town and the public.

The Planning Department prepared a successful grant to the State Department of Environmental
Management for funds for an inline skating facility and for the development of trails and amenities at Calf
Pasture Point. The Planning Department prepared a successful grant application to the US Department
of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service for funds to provide education to landowners
about the benefits of charitable donation of land or development rights. The funds awarded were used in
a partnership with two adjacent communities, their respective land trusts, the State Department of
Environmental Management, and The Nature Conservancy; while the grant has expired, the Town
continues to make the service available through contracts with tax experts.

The Planning Department assisted the Planning Commission and Town Council in the
development of the Five-Year Update to the North Kingstown Comprehensive Plan; a Comprehensive
Plan Five-Year Update is a requirement of State law and North Kingstown was the first Rhode Island
community to submit their Five-Year Update to the State Department of Administration.
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS (Continued)

The Planning Department prepared a successful grant application to the State Community
Development Block grant program netting $134,000 for use in the community this year. Most
significantly another three-year commitment of funds has been secured for use in the Davisville
neighborhood for housing affordability protection; community services; improving linkages between
residential and commercial areas, and making aesthetic improvements to commercial areas.

The Planning Department prepared a successful application to the Rhode Island Economic
Development Corporation for a small grant to be used to assist in the redevelopment of a Town-owned

property; this property received approval by the voters to be sold for private business use. The grant will
assist the Town in marketing the property.

Senior Services

Center programming continues to involve an increasing number of older adults from the
community each year. New programs included a Pasta Dinner hosted by the North Kingstown Police
and Fire Union and a Senior Prom hosted by the North Kingstown High School Honor Society. AARP
Tax Aide was held from February 1, 2004 to April 15, 2004 with three volunteers filing 201 tax returns up
from 140 from last year. Thanks to funding from the North Kingstown Senior Association the Crafts
Room was completely renovated this year. Exercise programs offered this year were: Tai Chi for
Arthritis, PACE (People with Arthritis Can Exercise) Intermediate Fitness, Dancersize (at Beechwood
and Essex), Yoga, Lo-Impact Aerobics, and Line Dancing. Evening programs such as Nite Owls
continue to be popular, as are special events, dinners, ice cream socials, etc. Trips organized through
the senior center during this time period were: China Buffet and Christmas Tree Shop, Boston Duck
Tour, Festival Ballet — twice, Log Cabin, PPAC — Music Man and Swing, Newport Playhouse —three
times, Theater by the Sea — 3 trips, Foxwoods and West Valley Inn — twice. Special outings are also
arranged for non-drivers who dine at Seabreeze Dining- Captain Jack’s and other local restaurants.

The senior center also offers extensive volunteer opportunities both at the senior center and in
the community through collaboration with Seniors Helping Others, a Retired and Senior Volunteer
Program. At the Volunteer Recognition Program held last April 230 volunteers were appreciated for over
8,000 hours of volunteer service. Health Wellness programming continues to expand with use of the
Health Room for nursing and other health services. Kent County Hospital, South County Hospital and
Visiting Nurse Services each offer monthly health clinics including individual health counseling, blood
pressure checks, cholesterol and glucose screenings. Podiatry services are offered weekly in the health
room. Special health services are also provided on site by other agencies such as Visiting Nurse
Services, which includes Fall Prevention, Balance Screening, Depression and Medication Education.
The annual Flu Clinic served 367 individuals. Life Strategies for Older Adults, a new program enhances
well-being and coping skills. Insight support group offers support for visually impaired older adults.

The senior center has ongoing intergenerational programs involving youth and seniors. The Pen
Pals Program matches second and third graders from Wickford Elementary School with senior ‘Pals’.
Students and seniors write back and forth during the school year and enjoy special get-togethers. The
Special Friends Program involves students from Wickford Middle School who volunteer at the senior
center and socialize with seniors through games and volunteer activities. Students of all ages are invited
to perform musical programs throughout the year. Girl Scouts and Boy Scouts also help with many of
the special events and projects. This year the changes in Medicare and the introduction of the Medicare
Approved Drug Card involved considerable staff time and training. Several community presentations on
Medicare changes were held on this topic.
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS (Continued)

Police Department

The Police Department website has been upgraded and made more user friendly. The public can
now fill out security forms on line to give the police department up to date information on homes and
businesses in case the need arises to contact people during emergencies. There is also hurricane
preparedness information as well as “Slosh” maps that outline areas of possible flooding. The Police
Department has begun installing new mobile data terminals in the marked police cars. These new
laptops which work in conjunction with Verizon and the Rhode Island State Police (for connectivity) allow
for officers to obtain instant information in the cars, including suspect photographs, as well as allowing
them to write their reports in the cars saving valuable man hours and keeping officers on the road.

The Commercial Enforcement unit of the police department has two patrol officers certified to
conduct traffic stops and inspections of commercial vehicles. To date the Commercial Enforcement Unit
has been responsible for removing unsafe commercial vehicles from the roadway as well as working with
the Department of Health to remove unsafe food from several trucks, which were operating illegally
without the use of refrigeration for food transport. The Training division has been busy recertifying
officers with their duty weapons, handcuffing techniques and the Emergency Vehicle Operations Course.

The Police Department has been able to provide almost the entire department with their own
portable radio. This allows officers on their way to and from work to have contact with dispatch in case
the need arises. This allows for additional “eyes and ears” on the road at shift change each day. The
Juvenile Hearing Board is now up and running. This board, selected by the North Kingstown Town
Council, sits twice a month at the town hall, and hears juvenile cases which are referred to them by the
Youth Services Bureau of the Police Department. Having this board in place allows many juvenile cases

to be disposed without having to send families to the Family Court. It allows the juvenile one “bite at the
apple” for a first offense.

Crime prevention groups are up and running in many neighborhoods in North Kingstown. These
seven (7) groups meet at various times with officers from the 2" shift to discuss problems in their
neighborhoods. The residents in the groups also learn to report suspicious activity to the police and to
help each other by keeping an eye on their neighborhood collectively. This year the Police Department
started the T.E.A.R (Traffic Education and Accident Reduction) program. An officer is on the road for four
hours specifically for traffic enforcement in either problematic areas or areas with a high rate of

accidents. The program has been very successful. The goal is traffic safety and the method is to change
bad driving habits through enforcement.

Public Works

The department has settled into its new facility, located on Davisville Road. The Administrative,
Highway and Engineering divisions of Public Works are located at the facility. Staff continues to
successfully oversee and inspect the numerous subdivisions under construction and related public
improvements required by the Town’s growth. The Little Red Schoolhouse received a much-needed
facelift, including new windows and painting of the exterior. The Facilities division continues to manage
and maintain the increased number of parks and playground facilities in Town, as well as all Town owned
buildings, with only 5 full-time staff. Public Works continues to strive to promote maximum recycling and
reduce the amount of solid waste generated in North Kingstown. To that end, the Town saw an increase
of 3.8% in recycling tonnage disposed of at the Rhode Island Resource Recovery Municipal Recycling
Facility over the past year. North Kingstown continues to shine with its Maximum Recycling Program,
having the highest diversion rate (over 30%) of recyclables to solid waste in the state.

XXViii



ACCOMPLISHMENTS (Continued)

Water Department

The looping of water mains to allow for uninterrupted water service during emergencies has been
an important initiative for the Water Department. The Slocum Road loop has greatly improved system
hydraulics as well as fire protection and emergency capabilities. In addition a new connection on Devils
Foot road has been installed as part of the state reconstruction of Route 403. North Kingstown Water
has been an active participant in the Healthy Landscapes Program in partnership with the University of
Rhode Island Cooperative Extension Service. This educational initiative provides information to
homeowners on maintaining landscapes for clean water.

The Water Department continues to make water quality data available through voluntary quarterly
monitoring of wells and storage tanks and through the distribution and posting of the Department’s
Annual Drinking Water Quality Report. The Department continues to prepare a quarterly newsletter
called The Puddle to keep customers informed about water issues. The Wickford Harbor Watershed
Wastewater System Improvement Project has and continues to provide grant money toward upgrading
individual sewage disposal systems to certain advanced technologies, the goal being to improve

wastewater treatment in this important watershed. This is a coordinated effort with the USEPA and the
University of Rhode Island.

North Kingstown School Department

North Kingstown teachers and administrators have been selected for recognition at the state and
national levels for their contributions to students and their profession. Kathy Mellor was recognized as
National Teacher of the Year. The SmART (SPECTRA) program for the integration of the arts has been
implemented in most of our elementary schools and is being extended into the middle and high school
levels. Forest Park, Stony Lane and Quidnessett Elementary Schools were recognized in the past for
the Kennedy Center Creative Ticket award in recognition for their contributions to art education.

Davisville Middle School was named one of the top middle schools in the state in terms of student
achievement. The New England Middle Level Education association selected Davisville as an exemplar
for middle level education. Jane Kondon was selected as Rhode Island Middle School Principal of the
Year. North Kingstown High School offers the highest number of advanced placement courses in the

state and is one of the top schools in the state for the number of students receiving college credit for
advanced placement courses.

The High School was selected by the College Board for recognition as the top school in New
England for the improvement of achievement in advanced placement test results in Math and Science.
SAT scores are among the highest in the state. The high school followed up its successful
implementation of the advisory program with the start of block scheduling last year in order to provide
longer time periods to deliver instruction. All of our students achieve at high levels on state

assessments. No school was found to be low achieving and all of our schools have met the No Child
Left Behind standard for student achievement for 2011.
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS (Continued)

Leisure Activities Department

The North Kingstown Municipal Golf Course, completed another successful season generating
revenues in excess of 1.34 million dollars with over 40,000 rounds of golf played there again this year.
At the golf course, the golf cart staging area was relocated, all ball washers were refurbished or replaced,
club washers were added and over 120 tons of sand was used to improve the bunkers. In addition,
signage was replaced to improve the pace of play. Over 300 additional feet of existing docks at the
Allen Harbor Marina have been replaced this year. One third of the moorings have been pulled on
schedule, inspected and repaired as necessary.

The North Kingstown Arts Council has completed another successful year of programming. The
Family Entertainment series and the Tuesday Evening Summer Concert Series at the Town Dock
continue to grow. Sunday Musicals and Rhode Island Voices at the North Kingstown Free Library were
well attended. The annual Tuba Fests and Bill Stains Concert were back by popular demand. The new
“Shakespeare at the Beach” series included outstanding performances by the Trinity Rep Summer
Theatre program, by Mixed Magic Theatre and the Colonial Theatre Group. The Council also provided
support to Smith’s Castle’s Strawberry Festival celebration and entertainment for the Senior Center. The

Arts Council is grateful for the support from the Rl State Council on the Arts for the award of two grants
totaling $6,650.00.

Fire Department

The Fire Department is making progress in the elimination of the town wide (including QPD)
overhead fire alarm system, and implementing a system of Radio Fire Alarm Boxes. The Department
continues delivery of its Fire Prevention Education program in the school system, the Juvenile Firesetter
Program, and the inspections of high hazard occupancies. The Fire Marshal's office has been busy

implementing the new State Fire codes and regulations including inspections of all businesses, schools
and town buildings.

The fire Department has receives several homeland security grants which has provided the
department with a Decontamination Trailer with associated equipment (250,000), a Special
Hazards/Heavy Rescue with associated equipment (495,000) a air compressor to fill the departments
self contained breathing apparatus (50,000) and many other smaller grants to provide much needed

equipment. Finally the department responded to 3,608 emergency requests including 2360 requests for
emergency medical services.



CASH MANAGEMENT

The intention of the cash management system is to limit the amount of funds placed in accounts
where low or no interest is paid. Idle cash is invested in various instruments with various maturity dates
depending on the anticipated cash requirements during the period.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town joined the Rhode Island Interlocal Risk Management Trust (The Trust) in September
2001. Liability as well as collision coverage for all Town vehicles is insured through the Trust as well as
coverage for general liability, public officials, law enforcement, employees’ liability, flood and boiler.
Coverage for worker's compensation is purchased from a separate carrier. The Trust and the Worker’s
Compensation carrier provide loss control services on a regular basis. They work closely with Department
Heads in making loss prevention service visits to all Town facilities. An employee safety group meets
monthly to monitor work related injury claims. The Town requires all vendors providing services to the
Town to carry $1,000,000 general liability insurance, workers’ compensation according to law and
$1,000,000 automobile liability insurance. Certificates of insurance are required to list the Town as an
additional insured on all vendor policies and require a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town for
vendor’s workers’ compensation coverage.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of North Kingstown for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports. .

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to
program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Town Council
North Kingstown, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of North Kingstown, Rhode Island, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of

North Kingstown, Rhode Island’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of North Kingstown, Rhode lIsland, as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



The Management's Discussion and Analysis, historical pension information, and budgetary
comparison information on Pages 3 through 11 and 58 through 64 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November
22, 2004 on our consideration of the Town of North Kingstown, Rhode Island’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part

of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table
of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information, except for that portion marked “unaudited” on which we express no opinion,
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements; and, in

our opinion, the information is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the statistical data as set forth in the table of contents, and therefore, express no
opinion thereon.

Dhisesii™ ClaTillenTottaen § iieanson.Lif

November 22, 2004



Management Discussion and Analysis

The following discussion and analysis of the Town of North Kingstown'’s financial
performance provides an overview of the Town’s financial activities for the year ended
June 30, 2004 and is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and the Town’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e The Town of North Kingstown’s combined total Net Assets (Government Wide)
were virtually unchanged from June 30, 2003 to June 30, 2004, remaining at
approximately $28 million.

o This year's total spending for all Governmental Activities exceeded revenues by
approximately $300,000 and exceeded last year's spending by $9.5 million.

e Revenues for Business type activities exceeded spending by approximately
$200,000 for fiscal year 2004 and spending increased by approximately
$600,000 over fiscal year 2003.

e The General Fund reported a budgetary surplus this year of approximately $1.8
million because revenues exceeded estimates in all major revenue categories.

e Fund balance had been appropriated to supplement the resources available for
appropriation that were $500,000 less than budgeted for the General Fund.

Below is a brief discussion of the basic financial statements, including the relationships
of the statements to each other and the significant differences in the information they
provide. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise of three components:

1) Government-wide Financial Statements,
2) Fund Financial Statements and
3) Notes to the Financial Statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

The financial statements include two main basic financial statements in accordance with
Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the
Statement of Net Assets (Statement A-1, Page 12) and the Statement of Activities
(Statement A-2, Page 13). These two statements consolidate much of the information
contained in the fund based financial statements (Statements B-1, B-2, C-1 and C-2
found on Pages 14 through 21) into statements which facilitate in answering the question

is the Town of North Kingstown better or worse off financially than it was in the previous
year.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Town’s finances in a manner similar to a private-section business.
These government-wide financial statements outline both the functions of the Town that
are principally supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(Government Activities) and the business-type activities that are supported by fees to



customers. The Government Activities of the Town include Police, Fire and Rescue,
Public Works, Education, Recreation, Library, Senior Services, Welfare and General
Administration and the Business-type Activities of the Town include the operations of the
Department of Water Supply and the Quonset/Davisville Recreation Fund including the
North Kingstown Municipal Golf Course and the Allen Harbor Marina Facility. The

Government-wide Financial Statements can be found on Pages 12 and 13 (Statements
A-1 and A-2) of this report.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the Town is improving or deteriorating. Other non-financial factors need to be
considered as well such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the condition of
the Town’s infrastructure to assess the overall health of the Town.

Table 1
Net Assets
Total
Percent
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Change
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003-2004
Current
Assets $20,878,297  $27,263,182 $5,521,867 $5,692,470  $35,400,164 $32,955,652
Non-current
Assets 46,906,987 46,042,492 5,134,577 5,225,974 52,041,564 51,268,466
Total Assets 76,785,284 73,305,674 10,656,444 10,918,444 87,441,728 84,224,118 -4%
Current
Liabilities
(payable from
current
assets) 8,371,575 8,163,924 640,833 728,654 9,012,408 8,892,578
Non-current
Liabilities 49,607,239 46,610,385 785,407 733,730 50,392,646 47,344,115
Total
Liabilities 57,978,814 54,774,309 1,426,240 1,462,384 59,405,054 56,236,693 -5%
Net Assets
invested in
capital
assets, net of
related debt (4,333,063) (1,861,551) 4,221,731 4,440,572 (111,332) 2,579,021
Net Assets
restricted 94,442 87,654 94,442 87,654
Net Assets
unrestricted 23,045,091 20,305,262 5,008,473 5,015,488 28,053,564 25,320,750
Total Net
Assets $18,806,470  $18,531,365  $9,230,204  $9,456,060 $28,036,674 $27,982,425 0%
The Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the Town as a whole. The

Town’s combined total net assets were virtually unchanged between fiscal years 2003
and 2004 remaining at approximately $28 million. (See Table 1).

When looked at separately, the net assets of the Town's Governmental Activities
decreased slightly overall. A $2.5 million reduction in the 2003 to 2004 deficit balance in



investments in capital assets, net of related debt, results mainly from the paying down of
debt during 2004. The investments in Capital Assets, net of related debt, balances for
both 2003 and 2004 are negative amounts because the Town is not yet reporting its
infrastructure assets. Under GASB 34, this will not be mandatory for North Kingstown
until fiscal year 2006/2007. The reduction in the Current Assets by $2.6 million from
fiscal year 2003 to 2004, resulted from the fiscal year 2004 payments of 2003 year-end
encumbrances shown as corresponding reduction in unrestricted net assets. Another
factor relates to an increase in the percent of current year levy tax collections from 2003
to 2004 and the abatement of $550,000 in uncollectable prior year motor vehicle taxes,

during 2004, a decrease of $740,000 in Taxes Receivable from 2003 to 2004 has been
reported.

The Net Assets of the Town's business type activities increased by $225,856 with
investments in capital assets representing most of the increase. With the Water
System’s usage rates generating operating revenue that exceed expenses, the financial
condition of the business type activities is sound. The Town continued to invest in our
Water system with the encumbrance of funds for tank rehabilitation at Slocum and Bow
Hunters and by completion of the reactivation of Well #10 and construction of the
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system. The Town’s Municipal Golf Course
and Marina operations unrestricted net assets decreased by $25,000 due to operational

expenses and transfers to the General Fund, Recreation program that exceeded
revenues.

The chart below provides a summary of the Town’s net assets for fiscal year ended June
30, 2004 compared to June 30, 2003.

Chart 1
r Net Assets

In Millions




Because the Town of North Kingstown is not yet reporting its infrastructure assets, the
Town’s Net Assets reflected show a lower than actual investment in capital assets. The
Town’s roads, sidewalks, drainage, bridges, park and recreation improvements and
development rights acquisitions are not yet reported but the debt associated with
improvements to this unreported infrastructure is booked thereby reducing the total
assets. The Town has engaged the services of an engineering firm to inventory its
infrastructure assets and that process in ongoing. The Town of North Kingstown uses
these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. The resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources such as tax dollars and impact fees, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Unrestricted net assets may be
used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to its creditors.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods such as uncollected
taxes and earned, but unused, compensated absences.

As shown on Table 2, below, the total revenues and transfers increased by $3.1 million
between 2003 to 2004 for governmental activities. That increase includes a 10%
increase in Program revenues or Charges for Services due to increases in Departmental
Revenues for Town Clerk Licenses and Recording fees as well as increases in building
permit revenues. The $1.0 million increase in Operating grants and contributions is due
to increased intergovernmental state aid and grant funded activities and increases in
tuitions for Jamestown students. The increase in General Revenues is for increases in
tax revenue that were raised for with increased spending for Town and School employee
pay and benefits in the School and General Fund. The balance of the Increased
spending was for the grant related expenditures. The business type activities faced the

same increases for employee pay and benefits. Overall there was a slight reduction in
Net Assets of $49,249 for FY2004.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets (in millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total Total
Activities Activities Percentage
Change
2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003-2004

Revenues
Program Revenues $ 54 $ 63 $ 50 § 541 $104 $113 9%
Operating Grants & Contributions 14.1 15.5 141 15.5 10%
General Revenues 58.3 59.3 0.2 0.2 58.5 59.4 2%
Transfers 0.4 0.3 (0.4) (0.3)
Total Revenues and Transfers 78.3 81.3 4.8 5.0 83.1 86.3 4%
Program Expenses and Transfers
Program Expenses 721 81.6 4.2 4.8 76.3 86.4 13%
Total Expenses and Transfers 721 81.6 42 4.8 76.3 86.4 13%
Increase (Decrease) in Net
Assets $ 62 $ (03) % 06 $ 02 $ 6.8 $(0.0) -101%




Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities in Chart 3, below, shows the total cost and the net cost of
services. The Net Cost identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue
and unrestricted state aid after deducting for departmental revenues. Spending for all
activities other than interest on long-term debt increased. The total net cost of services
increased by $7.3 million. The total cost of Educational services increased from 2003 to
2004 by $5.1 million and Capital expenses increased by $1.0 million. General Property
Tax revenues increased by $2.6 million to fund 5% budget increases for the School

Fund and General Fund. That increase was mainly associated with increased costs for
salaries and employee benefits.

Table 3
Cost of Governmental Activities (in millions of dollars)
Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2003 2004 % Change 2003 2004 % Change
Education $ 490 54.9 10% $ 334 § 374 12%
General Government 3.8 5.4 42% 1.6 2.2 38%
Public Works 35 42 20% 2.7 3.3 22%
Public Safety 10.5 11.1 6% 9.9 10.4 5%
Public Libraries 1.2 1.2 0% 0.9 1.2 33%
Interest on long-term 2.7 2.6 -4% 2.7 2.7 0%
debt
Other 1.4 2.9 107% 13 26 100%
Total Expenses $ 721 $ 824 13% $ 525 §$ 598 14%

The presentation of the Town’s major funds begins on Page 14. Fund Financial reports
provide detailed information about the Town’s major funds based on the restrictions on
the use of monies. The Town has established many funds, which account for the
multitude of services, facilities and infrastructure provided to our residents. However,
these fund financial statements focus on the Town’s most significant funds. In the case
of the Town of North Kingstown, the major funds are the General Fund and the School
Unrestricted Fund. Shown below is the change in the total fund balance for those two
funds. Portions of the fund balance of the General Fund and the School Unrestricted
Fund are reserved for encumbrances and designated for fiscal year 2005 leaving an
unreserved fund balance of $7,440,188 in the General Fund and $362,780 in the School
Unrestricted Fund. The major change in the School Unrestricted Fund is that last year
ended with reservations for encumbrances of $2.0 million compared to only $0.2 million
being reserved for encumbrances on June 30, 2004. The fund balance of the non-
major, governmental funds, declined mainly due to spending down of the Tax
Revaluation Reserve in the amount of $200,995, the Farmland and Open Space
Reserve for the acquisition of development rights in the amount of $748,197, the Athletic
Bond in the amount of $187,602 and the transfer out of School Capital Reserve funds for
upgrades to school property in the amount of $988,040.

Governmental Beginning Fund  Ending Fund Change Change
Balance 2004 Balance 2004 $ %
General Fund 8,636,351 9,688,276 951,925 11%
School Unrestricted Fund 2,413,348 912,893 (1,500,455) -62%
Total Major Funds 11,049,699 10,501,169 (548,530) -5%



Governmental Beginning Fund Ending Fund Change Change
Balance 2004 Balance 2004 $ %

Non-Major Funds 8,704,233 7,494,291  (1,209,942) -14%
Governmental

The proprietary Funds of the Town of North Kingstown report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements, only
in more detail. The Proprietary Fund Financial Statements provide separate information
for the Department of Water Supply and the Quonset/Davisville Recreation Fund
including the North Kingstown Municipal Golf Course and the Allen Harbor Marina
Facility, both of which are considered to be major funds of the Town of North Kingstown.
Enterprise Fund Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of both the Water Fund and the Quonset/Davisville Fund’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-section business.

Proprietary Beginning Net  Ending Net Change Change
Assets 2004  Assets 2004 $ %
Water Fund 7,255,860 7,501,197 245,337 3%
Q/D Recreation Fund 1,798,023 1,772,988 (25,035) -1%
Total Major Funds Proprietary 9,053,883 9,274,185 220,302 2%
Non-Major Funds Proprietary 176,321 181,875 5,554 3%

Below is an analysis showing variations for expenditures between original and final

budget amounts and between final budget amounts and actual budget results for the
Town'’s General Fund.

General Fund Expenditures Originally ~ Final Approved Actual Difference
and Transfers Out Adopted Budget (Budgetary

Budget Basis)
General Government $ 4,511,808 $ 4,308,198 $ 4,275,139 $ 33,059
Public Safety 10,999,760 11,052,760 11,027,864 24,896
Public Works 4,133,412 4,284,112 4,262,780 21,332
Recreation 393,384 393,384 392,901 483
Senior Citizens 290,598 290,598 288,860 1,738
Other 186,085 186,085 186,085 0
Total Expenditures 20,515,137 20,515,137 20,433,629 81,508
Debt Service Transfer out 4,047,472 4,047,472 4,047,472 0
Library Transfer out 908,888 908,888 908,888 0
School Unrestricted Transfer 33,721,234 33,721,234 33,721,234 0
out
School Capital Reserve 445,000 445,000 445,000 0
Transfer out
GRAND TOTAL $59,637,731  $59,637,731 $59,556,223 $ 81,508

The following is an analysis showing variations for revenues between final budget
amounts and actual budget results for the General Fund. In total the revenues
exceeded estimates by $1.8 million dollars. Tax collections over estimate account for
$1.1 million dollars of the total revenues over estimate.



General Fund Revenues and Originally Final Approved Actual Difference

Transfers In Adopted Budget (Budgetary
Budget Basis)

Property Tax $52,751,905 $52,751,905  $53,805,401 $1,053,496
Intergovernmental 3,625,032 3,525,032 3,752,464 227,432
Licenses & Permits 392,015 392,015 524,995 132,980
Investment Income 300,000 300,000 311,965 11,965
Departmental 1,508,395 1,508,395 1,867,607 359,212
Other 12,000 12,000 27,156 15,156
Total Revenues 58,489,347 58,489,347 60,289,587 1,800,240
Transfers from fund balance 500,000 500,000 500,000 0
Transfers in 648,384 648,384 539,404 (108,980)
Total General Fund $59,637,731 $59,637,731  $61,328,991 $1,691,260

The Town used a conservative approach when estimating tax dollars to be generated.
The tax levy calculation included an allowance for abatements of $145,000 based upon
the prior year’s experience and what was known to be potential abatements at the time.
The actual abatement of taxes was just over $100,000 in total. The Town collects
supplemental taxes during the course of the year for real estate construction that
receives a certificate of occupancy after the assessment date. The amount generated
from this is recorded as tax revenue but has not historically been used in the calculation
of the tax rate because it is uncertain as to what may occur. Supplemental taxes
received for the Fiscal Year were $193,500.

The balance of the tax revenue generated that exceeded budget was due to a higher
than anticipated tax collection rate. In general over the past few years, taxpayers have
been keeping more current with taxes. It is believed that this is due to the Town’s
interest rate for delinquent taxes being 12% per annum, which is higher than may be
available from banks and some credit cards. Also there continued to be a widespread
refinancing of mortgages on homes due to lower than usual mortgage rates and that has
helped taxpayers to keep tax payments up to date. This mortgage refinancing has also
impacted the revenues classified as Departmental revenues by generating $185,000
higher than anticipated fees for recording of documents such as new mortgages in land
evidence. Also impacted by the numbers of real estate transactions recorded in land
evidence were Realty Conveyance Stamp revenues that were received over budget by
$32,000. These are classified as State Revenues because a portion is kept as Town
revenue, a portion is reserved for Farmland/Open Space/Development Rights purchases
and a portion is sent to the State.

Other State revenues exceeded estimates in the amount of $38,500 for the General
Purpose State Aid but offset by $42,500 under budget for the telephone tax monies
generated by the State. The State Aid for Meal and Beverage Tax exceeded budget by
$197,000. This amount was in excess of State provided projections received during the
budget process and is a result of final increased amounts being provided in the State
budget. Rental revenue exceeded budget by $48,000 for communication tower rental
fees. Departmental revenues for the Transfer Station tipping fees exceeded estimates
by $53,000 and the Code Enforcement permits exceeded estimates by $112,000.



In 2003 the Town modified its fixed asset recording policy whereby fixed assets with a
value of over $500 are recorded. In prior years a value of $100 was utilized. The
reduction of the total number of fixed assets on record was significant but the reduction
in total value was not. In FY 2004 Public Works contracted for overlay of thirty-six
streets. In a joint effort with the State, improvements to Brown Street included new
sidewalks, lighting, landscaping and road reconstruction. New police cars and a street
sweeper were purchased for a total of $225,000. The Water Department completed
construction of the reactivation of Well #10 and construction of the Supervisory Control
and Data Acquisition system. The School Department replaced four elementary school
roofs totaling almost $1.0 million. The Town acquired development rights to 86.8 acres

of forested land in fiscal year 2004 through the use of Open Space and Farmland
Reserve funds.

The Town of North Kingstown had $47,904,043 in bonds outstanding at fiscal year-end,
compared to $51,213,233 last year, a decrease of 7%. No new debt was issued during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. Please refer to Pages 41 to 43 in the Notes for
further information regarding outstanding debt. The Town of North Kingstown carried a
Moody’s rating of “Aa3.” On May 24, 2004 the Town was notified that the Standard &
Poor's rating was upgraded from “A+” to “AA-" As of June 30, 2004, the Town has
$4,480,000 in unused bonding authority. In addition and subsequent to June 30, 2004,
the voters of the Town of North Kingstown have approved a $9.0 million school bond
issue. Under state law, the Town may not, without special statutory authorization, incur
any debt that would increase its aggregate indebtedness to an amount greater than 3%

of the taxable property of the Town. The Town’s debt limit calculation is shown on Page
37 in the Notes and Page 118 of this report.

Historically, infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, drainage and capital improvements other
than buildings) has not been reported nor depreciated in Governmental Financial
Statements.  Infrastructure represents a significant portion of the Town’s assets.
Similarly, the outflow of resources expended by the Town to maintain infrastructure also
represents a sizable portion of its operations. GASB 34 requires that the infrastructure
assets be valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-wide
statements. The Town will defer implementing the infrastructure portion of the
Statement. When the Town implements the Infrastructure portion of GASB34, the Town
plans to utilize the modified approach to address a majority of its infrastructure assets.

GASB 34 requires the Town to have completed this implementation by the end of fiscal
year 2007.

The fiscal year 2004 Budget was adopted to include a tax rate increase of 71 cents per
thousand of assessed valuation. The Levy was increased by just over $2 million dollars
or a 4.3 percent increase. This increase was required to cover projected increases in
spending for personnel related expenses including salaries and significant increases in
the cost of health insurance and retirement contributions for personnel. The Town’s
contributions to the Municipal Employees Retirement System for Fire employees
increased from 6.59% to 9.935; and for Police employees increased from .35% to 8%;
and for Municipal employees from 0% to 1.9%. The health insurance increase was
12.2% or approximately $775,000 for all Town and School personnel.

For fiscal year 2005, the budget was adopted to include a tax rate decrease from $23.31

per thousand of assessed value to $14.38 per thousand. This decrease was a result of
a town-wide revaluation of assessments as of December 31, 2003 where the assessed
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value increased from $2.2 billion to $3.5 billion. When adjusted for revaluation, the tax
rate for fiscal year 2004 would have been $23.42 or an $0.11cent increase. The levy
increased by $0.8 million or 1.56%. As in the previous year, this increase was required
to cover increased spending for personnel salaries and benefits. Some appeals of
assessments are currently under review by the Tax Assessment Board of Appeals. The
fiscal year 2005 General Fund budget includes an increase of the appropriation from

fund balance from $500,000 for fiscal year 2004 to $1,000,000 in fiscal year 2005 to help
reduce the tax rate increase.

The fiscal year 2004 rate of collection of current taxes was 98.56%. lt is anticipated that
the fiscal year 2005 rate of collection will be 97.5% while the rate used in the calculation
of the tax rate allowed for 97%. Based upon this, the current projection is that tax
collections will exceed estimates by approximately $250,000 for fiscal 2005. However, It
is projected that there will be a shortfall in payments in lieu of taxes for FY2005 of
$600,000 because the budget had been prepared with estimates for classification of the
tax roll that was not adjusted when classification did not occur. This was done in
anticipation of tax collections that would continue to be over estimate and it was
projected that would offset any shortfalls. However if that does not occur, spending for
fiscal year 2005 will be reduced to offset any revenue shortfalls.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the Government-wide and Fund Financial

Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on Pages 26 to 57 of
this report.

The Combining Statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major
Governmental Funds are presented immediately following the Required Supplementary

Information on Infrastructure Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedule
can be found on pages 65 to 98 of this report.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of North
Kingstown’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director’s Office,
Town of North Kingstown, Town Hall, 80 Boston Neck Road, North Kingstown, Rl 02852.
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A-1

TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
Component Unit
Governmental Business-type North Kingstown
Activities Activities Total Free Library
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,979,915 $ 5,007,483 $ 28,987,398 $ 193,913
Taxes receivable 1,170,009 1,170,009
User charges receivables 435,422 435,422
Other receivables 687,174 95,300 782,474
Inventory 154,265 154,265
Due from federal and state governments 894,327 894,327
Due from grantors 531,757 531,757
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 8,284,542 584,470 8,869,012
Depreciable, net 37,757,950 4,641,504 42,399,454
TOTAL ASSETS 73,305,674 10,918,444 84,224,118 193,913
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,665,399 360,761 2,026,160
Claims payable 239,402 239,402
Accrued liabilities 556,520 556,520
Compensated absences payable 163,000 15,620 178,620
Serial bonds payable 3,309,192 132,991 3,442,183
Deferred revenue 1,144,566 193,492 1,338,058
Other payables 554,564 554,564
Other liabilities 25,790 25,790
Escrow deposits 531,281 531,281
Total Current Liabilities 8,163,924 728,654 8,892,578 0
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Serial bonds payable 44,594,851 652,411 45,247,262
Compensated absences payable 2,015,534 81,319 2,096,853
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 46,610,385 733,730 47,344,115 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,774,309 1,462,384 56,236,693 0
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, net
of related debt (1,861,551) 3,856,102 1,994,551
Restricted for:
Permanent funds 87,654 87,654
Unrestricted 20,305,262 5,599,958 25,905,220 193,913
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 18,531,365 $ 9,456,060 $ 27,987,425 $ 193,913
(CONCLUDED)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds (B-2) to the Statement of Activities (A-2)
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (B-2): $ (1,758,472)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported

as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation

in the current period. (864,495)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources

of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This

amount is the net effect of these differences. 3,090,190

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenues in governmental funds. (756,244)

Excess of internal service funds' expenses over revenues, reported as governmental fund
activity. 13,916

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (A-2) $ (275,105)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004
Private
Police Pension Purpose Agency
Trust Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83 $ 31,655 $ 467,998
Investments 3,804,492
Due from other funds 554,564
Total assets $ 3,804,575 $ 31,655 $ 1,022,562
LIABILITIES:
Due to student groups $ 224,620
Payroll withholdings 651,375
Deposits held in custody for others 146,567
Total liabilities $ 0 $ 0 1,022,562
NET ASSETS:
Reserved for principal 31,655
Reserved for employee retirement 3,804,575
Total net assets $ 3,804,575 $ 31,655 $ 0

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Private
Police Pension Purpose
Trust Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Investment income:
Interest, dividends and gains $ 165,084 $ 427
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investment (191,646)
Total investment earnings (26,562) 427
Less investment expense 20,316
Net investment earnings (46,878) 427
Other income 0
Total additions (46,878) 427
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits paid 253,134
Administrative expenses 6,113
Per trust agreements 61
Total deductions 259,247 61
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (306,125) 366
Net Assets - beginning 4,110,700 31,289
Net Assets - ending $ 3,804,575 $ 31,655

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the Town of North Kingstown, Rhode Island
conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental entities. The

following notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the Town's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

REPORTING ENTITY

The Town of North Kingstown was incorporated in 1674. The Town is governed largely under the
1954 North Kingstown Home Rule Charter. In some matters, including the issuance of short and long-term
debt, the Town is governed by the general laws of the State of Rhode Island. The Town operates under a
Town Council form of Government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public
Safety (police, fire, civil preparedness, animal control and harbors and wharfs), Public Works (engineering,

highways and facilities maintenance), Water Supply, Code Enforcement, Library, Education, Social Services
and General Administration Services.

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) include all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions
issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. Enterprise funds also apply the same

principles. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are
discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14. Under GASB Statement No. 14,
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test 1 - The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential component
unit and

*

is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or

*

is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential
component unit;

Test 2 - The potential component unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test 3 - The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component unit were
not included.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 2004:

*

North Kingstown School Department

*

North Kingstown Public Library

Although the North Kingstown School Department met certain criteria of the tests listed above, it is
not deemed to have separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data of the North

Kingstown School Department has been included as a major special revenue fund within the Town’s financial
statements.

The North Kingstown Free Library Corporation, a not for profit agency was formed in July of
1993. The library supports the charitable, scientific and educational purposes of the North Kingstown Library
a non-major fund of the Town of North Kingstown.  Accordingly, the Library is included as discretely
presented component unit in the financial statements of the Town. The North Kingstown Free Library
Corporation issued a separate financial statement dated February 6, 2004, for their fiscal year ended

December 31, 2003. A copy of this report can be obtained by contacting the North Kingstown Free Library
Corporation, 80 Boston Neck Road, North Kingstown, RI, 02852.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 39 — Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The North Kingstown Free Library
Corporation has been determined to be a Component unit of the Town.

The Town will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future years:

v GASB Statement No. 40 — Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, effective for the
Town'’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2005.

v GASB Statement No. 42 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital

Assets and for Insurance Recoveries, effective for the Town’s fiscal year ending June 30,
2006.

v GASB Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employees for Post-
employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for the Town’s fiscal year ending June
30, 2008.

The impact of these pronouncements on the Town’s financial statements has not been determined.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered to
be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary
operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

a)Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual,
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding
total for all funds of that category or type, and

b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual,
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund. It

is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other
funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction
of specific capital projects or items.

Permanent Funds

The Permanent Funds account for assets held by the Town pursuant to trust agreements. The

principal portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives
of the fund.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Governmental Funds (Continued)
Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on
net income measurement similar to the private sector. Operating revenues of the Proprietary Funds consist
of customer/taxpayer charges for uses and services and certain other miscellaneous revenues. All other
revenues of the Proprietary Funds are considered non-operating sources of revenue. Operating expenses for
the enterprise funds includes costs of providing services, including administration and depreciation on capital
assets. All other expense items not meeting the above criteria is reported as non operating expenses. The

Town has two internal service funds which are used to pay insurance expenses relating to workers and non
workers compensation claims.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal and interest, other than those payable from Enterprise Funds.
Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government-wide statements)
Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. The reporting entity
includes four agency funds. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do

not involve the measurement of results of operations. The agency funds are as follows:

- Student Activity Funds - School Payroll Fund
- Payroll Fund - Developer Surety Escrow

Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund Brief Description
Major:
General Fund: See above for description

Special Revenue:

School Unrestricted Fund  this fund is used to report all financial transactions of the North Kingstown

School Department, which are not legally required to be accounted for
separately.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major and Non-Major Funds (Continued)

Proprietary:

Water Fund

Quonset/Davisville

Recreation Fund
Fund

Non-Major:
Special Revenue:

Accounts for the supply of water to the Town

Accounts for the golf course operations

Brief Description

Beachwood House Senior Center Equipment Escrow, Miscellaneous Federal
Grants, State Council on the Arts Grant, Non Civic Detail Escrow Fund,
Governor's Justice Commission, Special Purpose Donations, Miscellaneous
Senior Citizens Grant, CDBG Grants, Land Dedication Escrow, Fire Alarm
Cable, State Elderly Affairs Grant, State Grants — Police Department, Seized
and Forfeited Property Escrow, Local Law Enforcement Block Grant,
Groundwater Education Donation, School Department Substance Abuse
Donations, Infrastructure Replacement, URI Septic Loan Program,
Community Center Maintenance, Heritage Committee, Senior Center
Legislative Grant, Impact Fees, Emergency Medical Services, Welfare
Emergency Fund, RIDEM Potowomut Pond Clean-up, Fire Department
Legislative Grant, Tax Revaluation Reserve Fund, Miscellaneous State
Water Department Grants, Miscellaneous State Grants, Davisville Library
Fund, Champlin Foundation Fund, Library Fund, Willet Library Fund, RI
Emergency Management, Miscellaneous Library Donations, Wilson Park,
Retirement Allowance Reserve Fund, Health Insurance Reserve, Anne Ward
Wallou Memorial Garden, Surplus Property Escrow, Old Library Park, Senior
Citizens Center, Senior Citizens Bus Gasoline Escrow, Arts Council, Senior
Outreach Escrow, Project D.A.R.E., Leisure Services Brochure, Recreation
Escrow, Parade Committee, School Public Law 94-142, School Title I,
School Title V, School Title I, Drug Free Schools, School Title Il Technology,
School Preschool Services, School Department of Health, School Innovative
NEA Science, School Davisville Family Center, School Child Opportunity
Zone Family Center, School Parent Information Network Il, School
Substance Abuse, School Literacy Set-Aside, School, School COZ
Miscellaneous Donations, School Support System IDEA, School Even Start
Family Literacy, School CDBG, School Parent Information Network, School
COZ Miscellaneous Donations, School Adult Education Fund, School
Summer School Fund, School Sports Camp, School Support System IDEA,
School LCI Enhancing Education through Technology, School SAELP
Demonstration Site, School DMS Chesapeake Bay Program.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major and Non-Major Funds (Continued)

Fund
Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects:

Permanent Funds:

Private Purpose
Trust Funds:

Enterprise Funds:

Measurement Focus

Brief Description

Capital Reserve, School Capital Reserve Fund, 6.5 School Additions
Bond, 6M Public Facilites Plan Bond, Farmland & Open Space
Reserve, 2.3M Athletic Facilities Bond Fund, High School Bond Fund

Tri-Centennial Park, 400" Anniversary, School Updike Fund, School
Gardiner Fund, School Library Fund, School Tennis Fund, Henry
Reynolds Indigent Care, Henry Reynolds Outside Poor Fund, John'J.
Spink Outside Poor Fund, Thomas Casey Outside Poor Fund,
Elizabeth Miller Library Fund, Wiliam D. Davis Library Fund,
Veterans Memorial Scholarship, John B. Spink Outside Poor Fund.

Hall, Vaughn, Young, Rebecca Hammond, W.H. Welling, George C.
Hall, B.H. Davis, Updike, Mary Carpenter, Smith-Lawton, Old Baptist

Cemetery, Smith, Lawton, Weeks, E. Rogers/C.Levalley, Cogan,
Jones.

Quonset/Dasiville Reserve Fund, School Lunch Fund

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in

item (b) below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate:

(@) All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes as available
if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

(b) All proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position
and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KIN WN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus (Continued)

(c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or within sixty days thereafter to pay current liabilities.
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds, private purpose trust funds and agency funds utilize the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statement, the proprietary funds consider all investments with original
maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not
yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property taxes and
intergovernmental receivables. Business-type activities report service fees as its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals
such as property taxes and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both
measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues
earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivables are based upon
historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable amounted to $490,000 at June 30, 2004. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities
include property taxes (68% of balance). Business-type activities report service fees as its major receivables.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KIN WN. DE ISLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each December 31 (lien date)
and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1 (levy date). Taxes are due in equal quarterly
installments on July 1, October 1, January 1 and April 1, annually. Taxes due and unpaid after the respective
due dates are subject to interest rate at the rate of 12% per annum calculated on the unpaid portion of the
total tax. An automatic lien is placed on the taxpayer's property if payment has not been received by the tax
due date. Property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of levy. Property tax revenues
are recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting in the fund financial statements.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed

in governmental funds. Open encumbrances at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Certain unexpended and unencumbered appropriations for incomplete projects are carried over to

succeeding years. Such continuing appropriations are accounted for similar to encumbrances. Other
unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

Investments

In accordance with GASB No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pools, investments are reported at fair value.

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of various contracts and policies, Town employees are granted vacation and sick
leave based on length of service. The Town’s policy is to recognize the cost of vacation and sick leave in
governmental funds when paid and on the accrual basis in proprietary funds. The amount of earned but

unpaid vacation and sick leave relating to governmental fund employees is recorded as long-term debt in the
government-wide financial statements.

Judgments and Claims

Liabilities for legal cases and other claims against governmental funds are recorded when the
ultimate liability can be estimated and such cases are expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources. Proprietary fund types record these liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting.

Inventory

Proprietary fund inventory is stated at cost (first-in, first-out). Inventory consists primarily of materials

and supplies. Inventory maintained in governmental funds is recorded as expenditures at the time of
purchase.

(CONTINUED)

33



TOWN OF NORTH KIN RHODE D

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital
assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is

unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of donation.

As of June 30, 2004, the Town’s infrastructure assets placed in service prior to July 1, 2002
have not been capitalized and reported within the financial statements. The Town is in the process of

developing the information necessary to report all pre-existing infrastructure assets (including roads)
within its future financial statements.

Capital assets are defined by the Town, as assets with an initial individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets.
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

BUIldINGS ..veieiireeeeeeectreerecteee e 10 - 50 years
EQUIPMENt....cre e 3-20years
Property and leasehold improvements............ccccc...... 5-10years
FUINIIURE ...t 5-10 years
Vehicles and golf carts........ccccocvvieveeniveineenceccecce, 3 -4 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital

assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide
financial statements.

Deferred Revenues

In the government-wide financial statements, deferred revenues represent funds received in advance
of being earned/owed or receivables which will be collected and included in revenues of future fiscal years. In
the General Fund, (of the financial statements), deferred revenues include property tax receivables which are
assessed on December 31, 2002 and prior and are not collected within 60 days of June 30, 2004. Net
deferred taxes included in the fund financial statements were $3,031,880.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported as
follows:

- Reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and
interfund payables in borrower funds.

] Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as
expenditures on expenses in the purchasing fund.

- Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the

funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

. Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them.

Reimbursements are not displayed separately within the financial
statements.

. Interfund transactions are accounted for as expenditures/expenses when
they constitute reimbursements form one fund to another.  These
transactions are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund
and are recorded as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund

receiving the reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are reported as
transfers.

Self-Insurance

The Town’s self-insurance costs for health and general liabilities are accounted for in the Town’s
internal service funds. Claims incurred but not paid, including those which have not been reported, are
accounted for as expenses and accrued claims in those funds when a liability has been incurred.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity Classifications (Continued)
Government-Wide Statements (Continued)
(b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either

by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations

of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

(c) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt".

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this $(864,495) difference are as follows:

Capital outlays (net of disposals)............c.cccovreienene $ 948,466
Depreciation eXPense ..........coceeveieciiiiecennnnsceeennee (1,812,961)
Net adjustment...........cccooviiiinnne $ (864,495)

_ Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets.” The details of this $3,090,190 difference are as follows:

Increase in Accrued Interest........cccccceevenvenininnennn $ (60,981)
Increase in liability for Compensated Absences....... (184,836)
Principal repayments ..o 3,336,007
Net adjustment...........ccooeomiiiiine $3,090,190

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH KINGSTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Change in Accounting Method

For the year ended June 30, 2003 Medicaid revenue was net of related education expense. For the

year ended June 30, 2004 the Medicaid revenue is included in other revenue, and the related expense is
included in education.

Fund Reclassification

For the year ended June 30, 2004 various permanent funds were reclassified to a special revenue
fund, both funds use the same basis of accounting and therefore no adjustment to fund balance was made.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Legal Debt Margin

The Town's legal debt margin as set forth by State Statute is limited to three percent of total assessed
value which approximates $64,889,465. As of June 30, 2004, the Town had $785,402 of debt outstanding
subject to the Maximum Aggregate Indebtedness provision (3% Debt Limit) of the Rhode Island General Laws

45-12-2. All other Town debt has been incurred through special statutory authority which consists of approval
by the legislature and voter referendum. :

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Library collections .........c.cccoeeinciiiinincienieneceen $ 2,912,429 $ 2,912,429
1T 1 o POV 5,372,113 5.372,113
Total capital assets not being depreciated ..... $ 8,284,542 $ 8,284,542
Other capital assets:
BUILDINGS ..cvveeeeeeieeeeeerecrreerece e $46,629,105 $ 17,100 $ 0 $46,646,205
EQUIPMENL ..o 8,204,491 948,692 145,259 9,007,924
Total other capital assets at historical cost.... 54,833,596 965,792 145,259 55,654,129
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
BUIIINGS ....ooveeceeeeececeiceiee e (11,078,773) (1,095,215) (12,173,988)
EQUIPMENt ..o (5,132,378) (717.746) 127,933 (5.722,191)
Total accumulated depreciation........................ (16.211,151) (1.812,961) 127,933  (17.896,179)

(CONTINUED)
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Other capital assets, Nt ..............cccceeveevrcervcrernnns 38,622,445 (847,169) (17,326) 37,757,950
Governmental activities capital assets, net .......... 4 7,32 42,492
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
- o OO SORUPSRRURRNE $ 584470 $ 584470
Total capital assets not being depreciated ..... $ 584,470 $ 584,470
Other capital assets:
BUIAINGS .cveveeeeireeeeeere et $ 8,628,258 $ 168,097 $ 8,696,355
Property and leasehold improvements ..................... 525,672 525,672
Furniture and equipment...........cccccinciiieiiiinnniniinnnns 1,659,203 333,556 1,992,759
Vehicles and golf carts.......ccccceveiiniiriiiiniiinniiennnnns 697,728 91,775 $ 49,640 739,863
Total other capital assets at historical cost...... 11,410,861 593,428 49,640 11,954,649
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
BUIldINGS ...veeeeeeeee ettt (4,603,614) (148,787) (4,752,401)
Property and leasehold improvements.................... (444,438) (129,227) (573,665)
Furniture and equipment........ccocccveriiiieeinciiinenens (1,253,289) (78,842) (1,332,131)
Vehicles and golf carts.........cccoceeevveriinrennercersnennens (559,409) (95,539) (654,948)
Total accumulated depreciation........................ (6,860,750) (452,395) (7,313,145)
Other capital assets, net ................c..ccccoovrvvnnennnennne 4,550,111 141,033 0 4,641,504
Business-type activities capital assets, net........... $ 5134581 $ 141,033 $ 0 $ 5225974

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:

General QOVEIMMENt .......c.ccceevererentcrrcnrr s $ 54,451
PUDIIC Safety.....ccccveeeeeeeeeceeerce e 266,513
PUDBHC WOTKS ..ottt 165,962
o [0 Toz=1 (o o IO 1,185,651
Parks and recreation.........cccccceveeevrcvieenceenne e 9,762
PUbIiC IDraries.......cveveiereereeeree et sneaens 122,697
SENIOT SEIVICES .....evvereeeieeieeieeeeessreeeseestesse e s sssesssessssesanessassenns 7,925
Total governmental activities depreciation expense.............. 1,812,961
Business-type activities:
Major Funds:
LA = 0= OO PPP 227,039
Quonset/Davisville Recreation..........c.cccoenevviininnincinnieneninns 223,628
Non-major enterprise funds .........cc.cocvviinninicinnnn e 1.728
Total business-type activities depreciation expense............. 452,395

(CONTINUED)
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PROPERTY TAXES

The Town is responsible for assessing, collecting, and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling state legislation.

Net property taxes levied for the fiscal year 2004 were based on a net assessed value of
approximately $2,190,000,000 at December 31, 2002 and amounted to $51,861,710. Collections through
June 30, 2004 amounted to $49,906,474, which represents approximately 98.12% of the total tax levy.

The Town recognizes property tax revenues in accordance with Section P70, "Property Taxes" of the
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards on the Fund statements. Unpaid
property taxes as of June 30, 2004 ($1,170,009) are recorded as a receivable, net of an allowance for
uncollectible property taxes of $490,000. Those net property taxes receivable which were not collected within
the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2004 are recorded as deferred revenue and amounted to
$852,819 at June 30, 2004. Property taxes recognized as revenue on the Fund statements for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2004 (due to their collection within the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2004)
amounted to $317,190.

On June 30, 2004, the Town levied property taxes for its next fiscal year based on the December 31,
2003 assessment as follows (unaudited):

Taxable Net Taxable Rate Per
Assessment Exemptions Assessments $1,000 Net Levy
Real property .......cccceeevrenene $3,373,797,470 $59,042,215 $3,314,755,255 $14.38 $47,688,260
Motor vehicle ........cceeererveene 221,425,702 94,335,027 127,090,675 22.04 2,760,868
Tangible property........cc.cee.... 84,417,360 659,202 83,758,158 14.38 1,207,054
Totaleeieeecceecreecereccneeeene $3,679,640,532  $153,926,444 $3,525,604,088 $51,656,182

Taxes are due in equal quarterly installments on July 1, October 1, January 1, and April 1 during the
fiscal year.

CASH DEPOSITS

At June 30, 2004, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was $29,487,134, while the bank
balance was $29,878,563. Of the balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and

$28,378,563 was uninsured. The uninsured balance includes $15,222,892 which is collateralized and
$13,155,671 which is uncollateralized.

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets:

Unrestricted cash, including time deposits ........cccccevrrernnnneininniniee e $29,487,134
Less: Fiduciary funds cash, including time deposits (not included in the
government-wide statement) ..........cccooiveininnn s (499,736)
Total cash and cash equivalents on A-1 ................cccovvvvniniininniennnineenne $28,987,398
(CONTINUED)
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INVESTMENTS

The Town invests in various types of investments which are stated at fair value. The Finance Director

has control over the type of investments made. The Town Charter nor any other legally contracted
agreement limits the type of investments that may be made.

The Town’s investment holdings include collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s), which are a
form of a mortgage backed security commonly termed a derivative. These securities are used in part to
maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates. These securities are based on cash
flows from interest payments on underlying mortgages. Therefore, they are sensitive to prepayments by
mortgagees, which may result from a decline in interest rates. For example, if interest rates decline and
homeowners refinance mortgages, thereby prepaying the mortgages underlying these securities, the cash
flows from interest payments are reduced and the value of these securities decline. Likewise, if homeowners

pay on mortgages longer than anticipated, the cash flows are greater and the return on the initial investment
would be higher than anticipated.

Fair
Description Value
U.S. Government agency
Obligations ........ccceererereeenerereeereenene $1,460,961
Corporate obligations..........c.cccecueuuue 1,563,682
Collateralized mortgage obligations. 779,848
Total investments..........cccoeceerienee. $3,804,492

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets:
UNTEStrCtEd INVESIMENES ....eeeeiiiiceee et ceeeeee e eeerreecsee e essreeeeesssseseesesseeesserseeesssessnnseees $3,804,492

Less: Fiduciary fund investments (not included in government-wide statement)... (3,804,492)
Total cash and cash equivalents on A-1 $ 0

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
(a Long-Term Liability Activity

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Long-term debt:
General obligation debt.................. $51,213,233 $(3,309,190) $47,904,043 $3,309,192
Lease payable .........c.coceevnveninnnnns 26,817 (26,817) 0 0
Total long-term debt................ 51,240,050 (3,336,007) 47,904,043 3,309,192
Other long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences................ 1,993,698  $1,206,372 (1,021,536) 2,178,534 163,000
Total other long-term
liabilities ...........cccovvervevvenernne 1,993,698 1,206,372 (1.021,536) 2,178,534 163,000

Governmental activities:
Long-term liabilities

(CONTINUED)

40



(34

(Q3NNILNOD)

001'GSL 000°0¥9°¢

06¥'0LL'L 0000869

0’661 'V ozL'L.e'0L

yig'erl'L 166'GLL'C)

2’618t 261'68.L'C

050°'1G6'L 261'698'C

9£8'860'C 261'6¥6'C

o9l'ese’ec z6l'vic'e

L12'96e'c $ z6l'soc’e $

jserau] [edduid Togaunt
pepu3 Jesa\

1qag uonebiiqO [esaudd

———— e ——————————— et

0o1A8G 1990 SU AQ SpeW I SSRIAIOE [EJUSLILISACE S,UMOL 3L 0} ureped Jey) sanjiqel| wis)-

SAILIAILOV TVININNYIA0O

"SMOJ|O} SB 2J8M $00T ‘0E Sunr Je sjuswalinbal aolAes 1980

Munyew 3qeq ()]

‘pun4 [eJauas) pue pung

Buoj Joyjo pue jqap wisl-Buo jje uo suswied

% ............................. sanjiqel| wis)-6uo
:saniApoe adA}-sseuisng
02961 6€£6 96 21789) ¥cS ¢l 685 ¢6 -*sepjjiqe}| uue}-6uoj Joy3o |ejoL
02951 6€6 96 bZ1789) y25CLS 685926 o seouesqe pajesuadwo)
:sepijiqey| uue}-buoj 18130
166 CEL 20y G8L wev'icl) op8cle  TTTT™! 3qep uuej}-buoj g0l
166¢CELS 20¥'G8.% wev'Lch)s oy8ele § T 1gep uonebijqo |essueD
:3q9p uusj-buon
:senIApdYy adA}-ssauisng
Tes i auQ aoueeg suononpay suonippy aouejeg
Uiy eng Buipuz Buiuuibeg
sjunowy
(penupuod) SIILITIGVIT WHIL-ONOT L
$00Z ‘0€ INNI

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNId OL SILON

GNVISTIaORY ‘NMOISONIY HIHON 30 NMOL



[44

(@3INNILNOD)

ST — SOPTEIG e _sﬁ
612°G¢C ¥18°¢S1 ” 6L0C - GL0C
€06‘8S ev0'vSt 102 —010¢
G9G'GlL 808°0¢
28.'91 808°‘0€
vs've 900's¥}
¥€6'1LE z2/8's¢gl
G96'8¢ $ 166'CEL$
SEEIEI] fedduud *0€ aunr
papu3 Jes A
JgoQ uonebi|qO [e1eudD
SIILIAILOV 3dAL-SSANISNg
(panunuod) SIILITIGVIT WYIL-ONOT L

¥00z ‘o€ INNT
SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNId OL S3LON




1994

- sappIqe)| waey-Buoj je3ol

.................. JpaIn 8199Q uyop

:ajqefed asea]

uonebijqo jesoudb [ejol

........................... 909 W 6'1$

g09 N S¥8'e$
409 N Ge8°€$

............................. 909 WEES
....................... g09 W S0S°L$
......................... 909 W $6'5$

puog 000°008$

.................... v:om mc_vcs.h.mm

g seuas 8661 909 WE'ES

...................................... pUOq
Jo uoiuod uoljealodl QO 1SS
V seues 8661 909 WS88'L$

:3qap uonebiqo jeiaudn

(@3aNNILNOD)
‘065795 2$ Alerewixoidde sem 002 ‘0c aunr papus JeaA ay} Joj sapliiqel| wua}-buoj [eseusb uo pied asuadxa }saiaul 810 L
tvov06 v  L009EE €S 0% 0S00VC 1G5 S¥G el ¢9%
0 1189¢ 1189¢ €0 — 66/0¢/01 %9°'G S¥secl 66/02/0L
€y0'v06 LY 06160€°€ gecele LS 000702029
0007005 L 000°00C 000700.°1 [T —cO/GLCl %SEVv—G€ 0007006 '} Lo/GLICE
000'020°c 000622 000's62°c 9L —20/SL/9 %S G—SGL'€E 000'G¥8°‘¢ 1L0/SL/I9
000'0S2°€ 000°'G6} 000'st¥'e 0Z - LO/SLI6  %S9—SG.LY 000°GE8‘E 00/S1/6
0000062 000°'0zE’} 000°09¢°0€ GZ - 10/L0/0L %G.8'G —GC'S 000'000°cE 66/L/CL
000562’ 000°G6S 000'01€°L 61 — 00/GL/9 %0'L—8% 000G0S'L 66/51/9
000091 000°66¢€ 000'655°C LL—26/10/8 %09—-0G 000°056'S 96/S1/S
000'G22 000'G9 000‘06¢C 90-126/SLIZL %S8—€9 000°008 ¢6/SLicL
000'G00°L 000‘0v¥y 000'St¥'L 10—66/GL/.L %G'G—0€ 00000EC 86/5L/CL
(256'09%) (o18°0€) (292°16V%)
000°016'G $ 000‘G6E $ 000'G0E'9 $ g8l —66/SL/CL %9 — L€ 000'G88'L $ 86/SL/CL
¥0/0€/9 Sjuswalilay suonppy €0/0¢/9 aleq ajey panssj anssj
BuipueisinQ BuipueisinQ Aunyey }sasau| unowy Jo ajed
aouejed aouejeg

se aJe sjunowy ‘(punj Asey

audoud ey} J 1qOp 1) SAIIIGE!] PuUny SE PapI0dal Jou Bie ey} Sellq

:SMOJ|0}

el wiey-Buo| 8y} Jo s)sisuod sanliqel| wue)-Buoj [eJous

(penupuo)) SIILITIGVIT WYIL-ONOT

¥00zZ ‘0 INNI
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 OL SILON




TOWN OF N H KINGSTOWN, R E N

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2004

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
GENEIal FUNM..............oeeeeeeeeeereereereeresesteseesenssesiesee e ssesresrsnssrssnsanens $ 403,781 $3,785,844
Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development Block Grants...........ccoevveoiinininennnnenenn 6,205
Library FUN ......ccoccivereeciiciir s 107,212
School Unrestricted FUNd .........cccoivivieciereeicceerrtree e 1,990,242 518,830
Noncivic Detail ESCrow FUNd .........ccooiiivieeinericeiiennnnneenneesnenns 98,818
Miscellaneous State Water Dept. Grants..........ccccooeviviiiiiiciiniciinninnns 7,625
Miscellaneous Federal Grants..........cccocceiiiininnninneeeniencnccees 236,521
IDEA. ... oottt et e te s e s e s s e e s s r et r e r e s n e e e bt s 135,315
Tax Revaluation Reserve FUNd .........cccceveeernrenniniinininneeeneeeieesnes 43,841
RI Parent INfo NetWOrK.......cccoveiiiiiereeicieen et 2,626
Even Start Family Literacy .......c.cccccvvviiiiininninincneennncecceee 12,202
Tutorial MCKCOZ HOMEIESS.......covvueeieiereiiiiiiin e 3,654
Coz Family Center ..o 41,554
RI Emergency Management ... 7,969
Comprehensive School REfOrM ........ccccveveemeieiinininices 11,616
Past VIDEA ... ceettreete et s st resse s sass s ss s e s s ae s s saes 208
School & Support SYstem ... 3,355
Title IV Drug Free Schools..........coiiiiiiiniineiinenee 200
B (=Y PSR TPP 61,646
THIE V e eeeeeee e eeeeeeestesseesese e seese e ssesee s e e e s sa e s e anesenessrbessbassnansnensenanan 10,990
B (=3 = TP 165,185
WIlEH LIDFAIY ...ooveueieeeeeceeeeeecer et 1,684
Total special revenue funds ...................ccoovevuvinimninninniinnsnnnnnen 2,097,454 1,370,044
Debt Service funNd.................ooeceeecviiceeeeeeecee e 1,667,297
Fiduciary Funds:
Payroll FUNG........coerirmeeeiiininiccce et 36,851
School Payroll FUNd ... 517,713
Total fiduciary fUNdSs...............c...ccooovvuiiniininnininn 554,564
Capital Projects:
School Capital Reserve FuNd ..........coooeeinmninnnnncnecninees 432,792
Total capital Projects.................ccvevueninieninnninnnnes 432,792
TOTALS ...ttt te e see e e ree s see s st e s se s sbe s saa s b s anesnassans $5,155,888 _$5,155,888
(CONTINUED)
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FUND EQUITY
(a) Reserves and Designations

Reservations and designations of fund balances at June 30, 2004 were as follows:

General Fund:
Reserved for @NCUMDIANCES..........ciiiieiiiiiretereeee e e s e rrrereeeseressreereseres e ssssstarstarresrsassraaeseeesarans $ 973,088
ReSErVEd fOr COPS Grant ....coooeeiiiiiieceiiiiiereeerreeseesesiseeeeessssssreeeesssessssssnsssassssenereesseresaseassasens 175,000
Designated for future eXpenditures.............cccoviviiniiiiiii e 1,000,000
Special Revenue Fund Types:
Reserved for COPS grant.........cccevieeieririeninerer ettt st ae s s s s 90,000
Debt Service Fund:
ReESErVed fOr AEDEt SEIVICE ....ccoeeieeie ettt ese s s s sr e s s e e s e s s s e s e e s snasaasssssssaneneaaenans 1,667,297

Fiduciary Fund Types:
Reserved for trust PrinCIPal........cccvcierirrirreere et sa s s sa e s e s e s g e 31,655

Reserved for employee retirement SYyStem ... 3,804,575
Total reservations and designations of fund balances ......................cccovuvevnniinniincnnenne 7,74
(b) Operating Transfers In and Out
Transfers In Transfers Out
Major Funds:
General fund ........coceeeeeccree e $ 539,404 $39,729,094
School unrestricted fund ..........ccoeveeeeicieiiinnnenenn. 34,709,274 55,000
Quonset/Davisville Recreation Fund ................. 278,383
Non-major Funds:
Special revenue funds ...........cccoevninvininiiinnene 908,888 261,021
Debt service fund.........cccceeveerveervvenenennenieenens 4,426,154
Capital project funds ......c.cccevvvviiiiiiiiiciiinis 378,682
Permanent funds........cccceeevvericniinciniiiiens
Library fund ........ccocevvenciinnee, 17,993
School capital reserve............cccceviiriniiniinniininnnn, 500,000 988,040
Capital reserve........cccoeceeeecervecenienienenne 320,000
Internal service........ccccveveeiecinece, 304,493
TOtals ... $41,708,213 $41,708,213
(CONTINUED)
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10.

11.

BONDS AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED

Bonds authorized but unissued at June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Open Space/Farmland Bonds ..........cccccccvvinnennn $2,840,000
Public Facilities Plan Bonds........c.cccccvveeiiiinienne 1,290,000
Library ....ooccev e, 350,000

TOLAL ...t $4,480,000

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
(a) General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan

The Town of North Kingstown participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the
State of Rhode Island (“System”), an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan. The System includes a
normal plan for general employees and both a normal and optional plan for police and fire personnel. All full-
time Town and non-certified School Department general employees participate in the System.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $10,553,586
and the Town wide payroll was approximately $45,175,828.

Plan Description

The following eligibility and benefit provisions are established by State Statute. The System generally
provides retirement benefits equal to 2 percent of final average salary per year of service with a maximum
benefit of 75 percent of final average salary. Final average salary is the three highest consecutive years of
earned salary exclusive of overtime, bonuses or severance pay. Such benefits are available to members at
least age 58 with 10 years of service or after 30 years regardless of age. The plan also provides non-
occupational disability benefits after 5 years of service, occupational disability benefits with no minimum
service requirement, survivors’ benefits, and certain lump sum death benefits. Employees are vested in their
retirement benefits on completion of 10 years of service. Benefits are established by State Statute.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

General employees were required by State Statute to contribute 7% of their annual earnings until the
maximum benefit (75 percent of final average salary) is accrued. The Town is required to contribute based on
an actuarially computed amount and as provided by State Statute for each participating municipality. The
actuarial method used is the entry age normal cost with part of each municipality’s unfunded actuarial liability
funded over a closed thirty year amortization period and the balance funded over the projected future payroll
of active members. Due to large fluctuations in the contribution rates of certain municipalities, the plan has
adopted a procedure which would allow a unit the option of paying a smoothed contribution rate. The
smoothed contribution rate equals the previous fiscal year's contribution rate plus the greater of 2 percent or
one eighth of the increase in contribution rate plus the cost of any benefit improvements. The actuarially

determined contribution amount for the Town was determined as described above and was based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2001.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(a) General Municipal Employees’ Pension Plan (Continued)

The annual required contribution for the Town which equals the annual pension cost for the year
ended June 30, 2004 was $200,425 for general employees. This contribution represents 1.90% of covered

payroll. General municipal employees were required to contribute $738,414. This contribution represents 7%
of covered payroll.

There were no current year changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, or actuarial funding
method that would significantly affect the contribution requirement. Significant actuarial assumptions and
other actuarial information are presented in the following required supplemental information.

Trend Information
Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2002 $0 100% $0
2003 $0 100% $0
2004 $200,425 100% $0

Trend information showing the System’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island’s Employee Retirement System’s June 30, 2003 annual
financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode Island

Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report
available from the State who administers the Plan.

(b) Police and Fire Pension Plans
Town of North Kingstown Police Pension Fund Plan Description

All retired police department personnel as of June 30, 1996 are covered by the Town of North
Kingstown PERS. The Police Pension Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that was
established by the Town in accordance with state statutes. Included in the plan are only 11 retired, 4 disabled

and 4 beneficiaries. All active participants as of July 1, 1996 were transferred into the Employee’s Retirement
System of the State of Rhode Island.

As of June 30, 2004 employee membership data related to the pension plan is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries ...................... 19

The following eligibility and benefit provisions are established or amended by the Administrator of the
Plan, the Town of North Kingstown. The publicly available financial report may be obtained by writing to the
Town of North Kingstown, 80 Boston Neck Road, North Kingstown, Rl 02852-5767.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(b) Police and Fire Pension Plans (Continued)
Town of North Kingstown Police Pension Fund Plan Description (Continued)

The pension plan provides pension benefits, disability and survivorship benefits. A member may
retire the first day of the month following the attainment of age 55 or completion of 20 years of service, if
earlier. Benefits vest 100% after 10 years of service.

Compensation averaged over the 3 consecutive years out of the last 10 years producing the highest
average prior to termination of employment or normal retirement date is used in determining pension benefits.

Upon the death of any regular and permanent police official or officer, 67.5% of the benefits paid to
such policeman shall be paid to his dependent widow for her lifetime until she remarries or, if there is no
widow or the widow remarries, then to his dependent children until they attain the age of eighteen.

The Police Pension Fund is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Investment income is

recognized as earned by the pension plan. Investments are valued at fair value. Neither the Town nor any
individual employee is contributing to this plan.

The actuarial method used is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method.

The net pension obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at July 1, 2003.
Significant actuarial assumptions used include:

a) Rate of return on investment of present and future assets

compounded annually 7.5%
b) Projected salary increases attributable to inflation N/A
c) Pre and post mortality tables 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table.
d) Assumed retirement age Later of attainment of age 50 or the

completion of 20 vyears of service.
Participants who are past this age are

assumed to retire immediately.
e) Disability N/A

f) Cost of living increase None
No changes in actuarial assumptions have occurred since the prior valuation.

Required Supplementary Information

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Cost of APC Pension
Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/02 $0 N/A $0
6/30/03 $0 N/A $0
6/30/04 $0 N/A $0

Ten-year historical trend information is disclosed in the supplemental section of this report.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(b) Police and Fire Pension Plans (Continued)

Municipal Police and Fire Pension Fund Plans

The Town of North Kingstown participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the
State of Rhode Island (“System”), an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan. The System includes a
normal plan for general employees and both a normal and optional plan for police and fire personnel. All
active participants as of July 1, 1996 were transferred into the Employee’s Retirement System of the State of
Rhode Island. All full-time police and fire personnel participate in the System.

The payroll for police and fire personnel covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2004

was approximately $2,259,294 and $3,341,262, respectively. The Town wide payroll was approximately
$45,175,828.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the MERS are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when

earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Interest income is accrued daily.

Plan Description

The following eligibility and benefit provisions are established by State Statute. The System provides

the following retirement benefits to employees at or after age 55 with 10 years of service or after 25 years of
service with no restriction on age:

Police — 2.5% of final average salary per year of service accrued after July 1, 1993 and 2% of final

average salary per year of service accrued prior to July 1, 1993 with a maximum benefit of 75% of
final average salary.

Fire — 2.5% of final average salary per year of service with a maximum benefit of 75% of final
average salary.

Final average salary is the three highest consecutive years of earned salary exclusive of overtime, bonuses or
severance pay. The plan also provides non-occupational disability benefits after 5 years of service,
occupational disability benefits with no minimum service requirement, survivors’ benefits, and certain lump
sum death benefits. Employees are vested in their retirement benefits on completion of 10 years of service.

Retirees’ benefits are adjusted annually by 3 percent, not compounded, to allow for increases in the cost of
living.

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(b) Municipal Police and Fire Pension Plans (Continued)

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Police and fire personnel are required by State Statute to contribute 9% until the maximum benefit (75
percent of final average salary) is accrued. The Town is required to contribute based on an actuarially
computed amount and as provided by State Statute for each participating municipality. The actuarial method
used is the entry age normal cost with part of each municipality’s unfunded actuarial liability funded over a
closed thirty year amortization period and the balance funded over the projected future payroll of active
members. Due to large fluctuations in the contribution rates of certain municipalities, the plan has adopted a
procedure which would allow a unit the option of paying a smoothed contribution rate. The smoothed
contribution rate equals the previous fiscal year's contribution rate plus the greater of 2 percent or one eighth
of the increase in contribution rate plus the cost of any benefit inprovements. The actuarially determined

contribution amount for the Town was determined as described above and was based on an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2001.

The annual required contribution for police and fire personnel for the Town which equals the annual
pension cost for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $526,398. These contributions represent 9.93% of
covered payroll for fire personnel and 8.00% for police personnel. Police and fire personnel were required to
contribute $203,336 and $300,574, respectively. This contribution represents 9% of covered payroll.

There were no current year changes in actuarial assumptions, benefit provisions, or actuarial funding
method that would significantly affect the contribution requirements. Significant actuarial assumptions and
other actuarial information are presented in the following required supplemental information.

Trend Information

Municipal Police Pension Plan:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2002 $ 0 100% $0
2003 $ 7,375 100% $0
2004 $187,158 100% $0
Municipal Fire Pension Plan:
Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2002 $ 55,920 100% $0
2003 $204,137 100% $0
2004 $339,240 100% $0

Trend information showing the System’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island’s Employee Retirement System’s June 30, 2003 annual
financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode Island

Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island. This report is the most recent report
available from the State, who administers the Plan.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

(c) Teacher's Pension Plan

All North Kingstown School Department certified school personnel participate in the Employees’
Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
plan. The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $22,968,488,
which consisted of $498,945 for employees charged to federal programs and $22,469,543 for all other
employees. The School Department’s total payroll was approximately $29,370,695. The Town wide payroll
for the year ended June 30, 2004 was approximately $45,175,828

Plan Description

The following eligibility and benefit provisions are established by State Statute. All North Kingstown
School Department certified school personnel are eligible to participate in the System if they are certified by
the Board of Regents, engaged in teaching as principal occupation, and are regularly employed on at least a
half time basis. Employees who retire at or after age 60 with 10 years of credited service or after 28 years of
credited service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit. The retirement benefit is equal to 1.7
percent of their final average salary for each year of credited service up to 10 years, plus 1.9 percent of their
final average salary in excess of 10 years through 20 years, plus 3.0 percent of their final average salary in
excess of 20 years up to the 34th year of service, plus 2.0 percent of their final average salary for the 35th
year, up to a maximum benefit of 80 percent of their final average salary. Final average salary is the three
highest consecutive years of earned salary exclusive of overtime, bonuses, or severance pay. Employees
are vested in their retirement benefits on completion of 10 years of service. Retirees’ benefits are adjusted
annually by 3 percent compounded to allow for increases in cost of living. Cost of living adjustments begin on
the January 1st following the third anniversary of an employee’s retirement. There were no changes in the
method, and assumptions in the June 30, 2003 actuarial valuation to determine plan cost. The System also
provides death and disability benefits. The System also provides pre-retirement benefits at a minimum of
17% of salary for non-occupational disabilities after 5 years of service and at 67% of salary for occupational

disabilities regardless of service. Surviving spouses are also eligible for both pre and post-retirement benefits
with minimum amounts established under varying circumstances.

Funding Policy

Rhode Island general laws set the contribution rates for participating plan employees at 9.5% of
salary. Annual contributions by both employers and the State on behalf of those employees are determined
by actuaries and assessed as a percentage of participants’ payroll. The School Department was required to
contribute 7.99%, 6.93% and 5.73% for all full-time employees for fiscal years 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. The required contributions include (a) normal costs; (b) payments to amortize the unfunded
frozen actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 1985 over 30 years; and (c) interest on the unfunded frozen
actuarial liability. Normal cost is determined using the entry age normal cost method with frozen initial liability.
A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used and these assumptions are summarized below:

(a) Mortality — 1994 Uninsured Pensioner mortality tables.

(b) Investment return — 8.25 percent, compounded annually.

(c) Salary increase - Salaries will increase at a rate of 4.50 — 17.0 percent,
compounded annually.

(d) Retirement age - Teachers are assumed to retire at the later of age 61 or completion
of the service requirements.

(e) Cost of living adjustments — 3.0 percent compounded annually beginning on the
January 1st following a participant’s third anniversary of retirement.
() Inflation rate — 3.0 percent
(CONTINUED)
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11.

12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(c) Teacher's Pension Plan (Continued)

Funding Policy (Continued)

As prescribed by Rhode Island general law, the State pays the entire portion of the annual required
contribution attributable to the costs of contributions deferred by the State in prior years plus 40% of
contributions assessed to employers on payroll not reimbursable through Federal programs. For fiscal year
2004, actuarial required contributions were 13.72% of participant salary, plus an additional .5% of non-
federally reimbursable salary attributable to State contribution deferrals. This resulted in contribution rates
paid by the State on behalf of the School Department of 5.737% of non-federally reimbursable payrolls
totaling $1,316,094 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

The School Department does not have any investments or related party investments with the State

Plan. The School Department's contribution represented 2.70 percent of total contributions required of all
participating entities.

The amounts con